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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRESE

Profit for the Year

| hereby announce that Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$8,040,366,000 (2014: approximately HK$9,273,399,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”). The audited profit attributable
to the owners of the Company and earnings per share amounted to
approximately HK$525,030,000 (2014: approximately HK$678,372,000)
and HK18.34 cents (2014: HK23.76 cents) respectively, representing
a decrease of 22.6% in profit compared to the same period last year.
The Group’s gross profit margin for 2015 was approximately 13.8%
(2014: approximately 15.4%). Due to the depressed market condition
and intensifying industrial competition, as well as the continuous fall
in commodity prices of raw materials, the Group recorded a year-on-
year decrease in turnover and gross profit margin. During the Year, the
Group streamlined its organisational structure to enhance the operational
management efficiency, which lead to a significant increase in redundancy
payments of approximately HK$38,366,000 (2014: approximately
HK$10,318,000). On the other hand, the Group continued to make further
investment in technology research and development (‘R&D”) as well
as improvement of manufacturing process. The R&D costs of the Year
amounted to HK$108,823,000 (2014: approximately HK$82,904,000).

Business Review
Analysis of Major Business Operations

In 2015, with continuous global economic downturn, the pace of growth in
different economies showed distinct differentiation. Except some developed
economic regions such as America, Japan and European countries
showed certain signs of economic recovery by adopting quantitative easing
programs, most emerging markets with relatively weak economic base
demonstrated less optimistic performance due to the impact of international
capital outflows. The global economy was also impacted by the fluctuation
of financial markets, especially the accumulative debt issues of various
countries. Under the “new normal” economy, China accelerated its
economic restructuring to cope with the pressure on economic downward,
excess production capacity, ecological environment treatment and lower
profitability of enterprises in 2015. According to the data published by the
National Bureau of Statistics in January 2016, China’s gross domestic
product in 2015 recorded a year-on-year increase of 6.9%, representing the
lowest growth since 1990.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRESE

In 2015, affected by the sluggish market and unfavorable social and
economic conditions and, especially the continued weakness of the real
estate industry, the growth in the rigid demand for electrical household
appliances was limited and the market of electrical household appliances
in China became saturated, which indicated that the industry had stepped
into a period of “freezing winter”. As a whole, most of the major electrical
household appliance manufacturers recorded a decrease in performance.
In addition, air-conditioners, refrigerators, washing machines and small
electrical household appliances showed an overall downturn trend with
significant drops and limited growth.

However, the electrical household appliance industry performed excitedly
in 2015. A large number of internet enterprises flooded into the industry,
which brought more opportunities than risks to the traditional market
players. The emerging of new concepts such as smart kitchen, smart
bathroom and smart bedroom continued to furnish the intelligent household
industry. Meanwhile, cooperation between traditional electrical household
appliance manufacturers and internet enterprises gradually brought more
innovative electrical household appliances to the market.

1. Motor Business

In 2015, the new domestic demand for air-conditioners was
insufficient, and the “price war” throughout the year failed to
consume the pipeline stock effectively. Meanwhile, various
unfavorable factors such as the escalation of product competition
and the deceleration of growth in the air-conditioner e-commerce
market also further hindered the development of the air-conditioner
industry, which led to the biggest drop of sales in the market since
the freezing year of 2009. The washing machine market maintained
stable growth and the demand was mainly driven by product
upgrading. In 2015, total domestic and export sales of household
air-conditioners, central air-conditioners and washing machines
decreased by 8.2%, 7.0% and 0.4% year-on-year respectively, while
refrigerator compressors increased by 1.5% year-on-year. (Source:
www.chinalOL.com)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s motor business
recorded a domestic sales volume of approximately 102,007,000
units and an export sales volume of approximately 31,082,000 units,
with the aggregate sales volume decreased by 6% as compared
to the same period last year. Of which, domestic and export sales
volumes of motors for air-conditioners were 69,513,000 units and
14,713,000 units respectively, with the aggregate sales volume
decreased by 13% as compared to the same period last year;
while the domestic and export sales volumes of motors for washing
machines were 15,156,000 units and 13,867,000 units respectively,
with the aggregate sales volume increased by 15% as compared to
the same period last year. The Group’s turnover for 2015 amounted
to approximately HK$8,040,366,000 (including HK$4,361,568,000
from motors for air-conditioners and HK$2,551,770,000 from
motors for washing machines), representing a decrease of 13%
as compared to a turnover of approximately HK$9,273,399,000
(including HK$5,384,026,000 from motors for air-conditioners and
HK$2,681,642,000 from motors for washing machines) for 2014.

Faced with the sluggish downstream market of household appliances
as well as the sales fluctuation and narrowing profit margins
brought by the intensifying industrial competition, the Group actively
expanded the market by striving for more orders. Meanwhile, the
Group streamlined its organisational structure to enhance the
operational management efficiency, continuously optimised the costs
and expenses and improved the technology of its products, so as to
enhance its competitive advantages.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

IEHRES

1.1 Market Performance

1.1.1

Motors of Air-Conditioners

Due to the shrinking market demand of air-conditioners,
the sales volume of motors for air-conditioners
decreased by 13% as compared to the same period last
year, while the sales revenue recorded a year-on-year
decline of 19% as a result of the fall in commodity prices
of raw materials and the keen competition in the industry.
In particular, the sales volume of alternating current
motors for household air-conditioners dropped by 12%
as compared to the same period last year, nevertheless,
the orders from Japanese high-end customers increased
significantly due to the strengthened cooperation with
them; the sales volume of brushless direct current
motors for household air-conditioners decreased by
15% year-on-year, however, the structure of its customer
profile had been further improved; the sales volume
of commercial motors fell by 18% as compared to
the same period last year, nonetheless, the Company
had entered into cooperation with first tier international
brands of electrical household appliance manufacturers
in relation to the brushless direct current commercial
motors; the sales volume of reactors reduced by 12%
year-on-year, while significant progress towards new
customers exploration has been achieved.
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1.1.2 Motors of Washing Machines

With the growing popularity of drum and inverter
washing machines in the domestic market, proportion of
high-end washing machines had experienced an upward
trend. Benefiting from the market expansion of wave-
wheel motors, inverter motors for washing machines and
motors for drying machines, the sales volume of washing
machine motors delivered a year-on-year growth of
15%, while the sales revenue decreased by 5% year-
on-year resulting from the reduction in product price
and the change of product mix. In particular, the sales
volume of series motors declined by 15% year-on-year,
mainly due to the faling demand and the restructuring
of products portfolio made by customers; whereas, the
sales volume of wave-wheel motors increased by 27%
year-on-year, which was attributable to the greater effort
made to develop domestic customers and secure orders
from major customers; in respect of the inverter motors
for washing machines, the sales volume of the 3-phase
variable frequency motors rose by 113% year-on-
year, benefiting from the rising demand from domestic
market and more orders obtained from overseas
customers; the sales volume of direct current motors
grew by 154% year-on-year due to the enhanced
cooperation with existing customers and expansion of
domestic new customers; furthermore, the supply of
direct current brushless motors for drying machines had
been commenced for the international leading electrical
household appliance manufacturers.
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1.2

1.1.3 Other Products

As for other products, we completed the development
of direct current brushless air purifier motors and had
commenced supply for domestic and Japanese major
customers. On direct current brushless refrigerator
motors, we had entered into cooperation with
international leading electrical household appliance
manufacturers and also commenced supply for them. In
addition, the project team of servo motors had started
operation independently and carried out relevant work as
planned. At the end of 2015, the manufacturing of entire
series of prototype tool had been completed, and the
product performance was similar to Japanese products
as proved by the performance tests taken.

Other Performance

In 2015, the Group kept on product-led operational
transforming with further enhancement in internal operational
management, technology R&D, manufacturing process,
supply chain management and quality control. The Group
gained high recognition from the industry for its newly-
launched upgraded products. In particular, our new-generation
alternating current motors for outdoor unit of split-type air-
conditioners was honored with the “Accessory Award” in the
professional category of the 2015 China Appliance Award
at the Appliance & Electronics World Expo held in March. At
the Washing Machine Industry Summit held in September,
our brushless direct current motor for washing machine was
awarded with “Energy-Saving Motor Award” for the washing
machine industry. In 2015, our subsidiary, Guangdong
Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. successfully passed
the assessment for the New R&D Institutions of Guangdong
Province and the Technical Enterprise Institute of Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, while another subsidiary, Foshan Welling
Washer Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. successfully passed the
assessment for the Engineering Research Centre for Washing
Machine Motors of Guangdong Province.
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2. Business of Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Huaxiang”, an associate
owned as to 49% by the Group) continued to work on its
organisational reform and restructure its product portfolio through
transformation and upgrade. Despite the depressing macroeconomic
environment, the business of Shanxi Huaxiang achieved a growth as
a whole resulting from the increased sales of logistics forklift products
driven by e-commerce expansion, the increased sales of structural
parts and machined processing parts brought by the industry chain
extension, the increased sales of nodular iron castings supported by
the emerging markets and the increased sales percentage of high-
value products such as vehicle parts and electrical pipe valve parts
through the strategic transformation.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Shanxi Huaxiang recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$1,480,331,000 (2014: approximately
HK$1,532,972,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of 3%.
The Group’s share of profit in Shanxi Huaxiang was approximately
HK$51,396,000 (2014: approximately HK$41,253,000), representing
a year-on-year growth of 25%. The increase in profits were mainly
driven by the higher production yield rate resulted from process and
technology improvement, higher overall gross margin brought by the
adjustment of product mix and marginal effect of economy-of-scale.

Looking back on 2015, the Group adhered to its established strategy
of “placing customers at our core and making quality products” and
focused on the essential elements of its operations. The Group continued
its efforts in improving and upgrading technology R&D, product
design, manufacturing process and quality control, and promoting lean
management by continuous optimisation and integration of resources, so
as to offer better products and services to its customers. Meanwhile, the
Group has been actively seeking partners with an open mind to pursue
innovation and development. With all of these efforts, we managed to
sustain normal and sound operations despite the challenging condition.
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Business Prospects

Heading into 2016, the global economic outlook remains clouded.
Economic recovery is expected to remain uneven for a long time. The
growth of the global economy is quite uncertain due to the factors such
as the decline of international commodity prices and the rise in Federal
Reserve'’s interest rate. The economy in the United States is expected to
be on a sustaining recovery path with decent growth in job markets and
property markets. Eurozone economy shows a trend of slow growth as
a whole under significant deflation pressure. Japan’s economic growth
is projected to fluctuate due to the depressing private consumption
and export activities. The deteriorating internal and external financial
environment, drop in commodity prices and internal structural issues could
create uncertainty to the growth prospects of emerging economies. In
2016, the first year of China’s 13th Five-year Plan, the government wil
moderately expand overall demand and work more on the supply-side
structural reforms with concrete measures including eliminating excess
industrial capacity, cutting business costs, reducing inventory levels and
defusing financial risks so as to improve the overall social productivity. In the
2016 Economic Blue Book released on 16 December 2015, the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences expected China’s economy to grow by 6.6%
10 6.8% in 2016. The market demand for the electrical household appliance
industry is expected to slow down significantly, which would urge the
manufacturers to focus on product upgrade and innovation and business
model transformation. It is expected that overcapacity will remain in the
motor segment in 2016, which would further drive prices and profits down
and lead to more intense competition. The Group will continue to work
on operational transformation, integrate our resources and improve our
management standard to offer high-quality motors so as to consolidate our
leading position in the industry.

We will continue to focus on our customers’ demand, promote product
innovation, upgrade product structure, integrate our R&D, production and
marketing resources, speed up response to customer needs to achieve
efficient sales services, enhance competitive advantage and consolidate
larger market share.
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Motor Business

1.1

1.2

Motors for Air-Conditioners

The downturn of air-conditioning industry is inevitable as the
risks of high level of inventory and “price war” still exist. The
shifting towards inverter-driven, multi-connected household air-
conditioners remains the major trend of the industry. The Group
will continue to strengthen and upgrade product development,
especially on the alternating current motors of resin packages
for indoor and outdoor household air-conditioners, the
alternating current fan coil motors of resin packages for
commercial air-conditioners, and the commercial direct current
motors used in North America. At the same time, we will
focus on expanding the market of motors for air-conditioners
in South Asia, keep on developing new customers in North
America to commence supply of commercial direct current
motors, as well as contacting and developing new domestic
customers of direct current motors for air-conditioners.
Besides, we will launch brushless direct current motors for
indoor household air-conditioners based on MO position-
sensorless control, tailored to the specific requirements of
customers, to meet the higher requirement on reducing
machine noise.

Motors for Washing Machines

The washing machine industry continues a minimal growth
trend. With the increasing demand for inverter washing
machine, the proportion of inverter washing machine will
further increase and the competition on obtaining orders for
inverter motors will also become more intense. The Group will
accelerate the R&D on the product upgrade of inverter washing
machine motor and the launch of upgraded products, actively
competing on obtaining orders from domestic customers
while seeking customers for direct current motors in Europe
and the United States. We will put effort in the promotion of
new generation series motors to replace the original products,
so as to consolidate our leading position in the industry. We
will launch a more competitive upgraded product of wave-
wheel motors while developing wave-wheel motors of resin
packages for Japanese customers. Meanwhile, we will strive
for cooperation opportunities with new dryer motors customers
in Europe and the United States.
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1.3 Other Products

In respect of the compressor motors, we will focus on
developing in overseas markets, especially in the regions of
South Asia, Middle East, America and Japan. The alternating
current pump for dish-washing machines is expected to
achieve a breakthrough in American market and the direct
current brushless pump will commence supply in the European
market. Meanwhile, we will accelerate the development of
integrated heat pump. The development of water purifier
booster pumps for 600 to 800 gallons will be completed in
2016 and official products will also be launched. We plan to
expedite the industrialisation progress of servo motors and
intensify the market exploitation, in order to commence supply
of servo motors in the first half of 2016. We will continue to
seek and promote industry cooperation actively in an open-
minded attitude.

Business of Associate

Adhering to the core belief of “creating value for customers”, Shanxi
Huaxiang will optimise its talent team through further deepening the
reform of enterprise and continuous reengineering of organisation,
mechanism and culture. It will also leverage on its advantage of
technology and quality to continuously strengthen its core market

competitiveness.

In face of economic downturn, Shanxi Huaxiang will adhere to
its business strategy focusing on three major aspects “products,
quality and customers”. Through running on a customer service
oriented approach, solidifying the basic management, building a
comprehensive and efficient production and marketing system,
steadily enhancing existing market scale and actively expanding new
strategic product markets, so as to generate a strong and continuous
performance growth momentum in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRES

Corporate Business Strategies

Amid the complex macroeconomic environment and depressive industrial
market condition, it is challenging for the Group to figure out ways to
maintain sustainable development. Due to aforementioned circumstances,
the Group is devoted to striving for excellence, encouraging continuous
learning and innovation while promoting merits of seriousness,
responsibility, carefulness and diligence, aiming to develop an elite
management team. In respect of marketing, the Group focuses on
improving its market layouts, fundamental management and system
construction, while enhancing the matching with manufacturing and sales
as well as its supply capacity in peak seasons, with a view to offer better
and differential services to customers. In respect of R&D, the Group is
committed to building a customer-oriented R&D system through efforts
in keeping product R&D in line with market needs. Meanwhile, the Group
emphasises innovation in developing and upgrading its own products,
which helps its products to gain differential advantages. In respect of
production, the Group continues to enhance its lean management policy by
encouraging refined manufacture and craftsmanship as well as optimising
our manufacturing layouts so as to take advantages of integration of
manufacturing resources. Besides, we strive to achieve product quality
and manufacturing efficiency improvement as well as cost reduction by
enhancing communication among production lines and the implementation
of quality automated testing in manufacturing process. Further, the
Group also emphasises on increasing the value of its supply chain and
strengthening the synergy effect in respect of resources allocation, with
a view to establish long term competitive win-win relationship with its
suppliers. In order to achieve better quality performance in the market,
the Group will further strengthen its quality consciousness and implement
more stringent quality control, including but not limited to link up with the
appointment or dismissal of personnel to the quality control mechanism.
The Group will work on its lean management in respect of, in particular,
cost and inventory control, in order to improve operation efficiency and
ensure a long term healthy development.
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Last but not least, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers
and business partners for their support, and the board members, the
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the Group’s business development over the past year, supporting the
Group to continuously operate on an on-going basis under the challenging
environment. We hope that the management and all employees will
continue their concerted efforts to achieve growth against market

downturn.

Xiang Weimin
Chairman

14 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

Results

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately HK$8,040,366,000 (2014: approximately
HK$9,273,399,000). The audited profit attributable to the owners of
the Company and earnings per share amounted to approximately
HK$525,030,000 (2014: approximately HK$678,372,000) and HK18.34
cents (2014: HK23.76 cents) respectively, representing a decrease
of 22.6% in profit as compared to the same period last year. The
Group’s gross profit margin for 2015 was approximately 13.8% (2014:
approximately 15.4%). Due to the depressed market condition and
intensifying industrial competition, as well as the continuous fall in
commodity prices of raw materials, the Group recorded a year-on-
year decrease in turnover and gross profit margin. During the Year, the
Group streamlined its organisational structure to enhance the operational
management efficiency, which lead to a significant increase in redundancy
payments of approximately HK$38,366,000 (2014: approximately
HK$10,318,000). On the other hand, the Group continued to make further
investment in technology R&D as well as improvement of manufacturing
process. The R&D costs of the Year amounted to HK$108,823,000 (2014:
approximately HK$82,904,000).

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position with a
current ratio of 185% as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 166%).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$1,292,519,000 (2014: HK$1,931,761,000), representing cash
and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,313,169,000 less total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$20,650,000, which would be due within one year.

The Group has subscribed for wealth management products of
approximately HK$720,857,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil), which
offered better returns compared to the fixed-term deposit interest rates
provided by commercial banks in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

Financial Ratios B 7 bk &=

The following are certain financial ratios of the Group as at the date of the ~ TEREFIAEBRGA B KR E B 25 T

consolidated statement of financial position: =
2015 2014

Inventories turnover (Note 1) FEREE (i) 41 daysk 43 daysk

Trade receivables turnover (Note 2) S REW A (FiFE2) 70 days X 65 daysk

Trade payables turnover (Note 3) 2 S RN FAEE (F:E3) 72 daysk 72 daysk

Current ratio (Note 4) MENEE & (Mi5E4) 1.85 timesf%  1.66 timesf&

Notes: B 3

1. Inventories turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening inventories and 1. FERENERBFVFEEFRTFETHERUEFZ
closing inventories divided by the cost of goods sold of the year, and multiplied by the total HEEMKA BRUNEFZAREGE-
number of days of the year.

2. Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening and closing 2. 5 RY KR AE IR RIEE =7 R FYE 5 REGK
of trade receivables of third parties and related parties, divided by the revenue of the year, BEREZEBATFHERAEFZRA  BRUAEFZ
and multiplied by the total number of days of the year. BRYETE -

3. Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening and closing of 3. RN NEASHIREE =7 K@ S FIE S EMNTK
trade payables of third parties and related parties, divided by the cost of goods sold of the MEREGENATFHAERAEF 2 HEERKA  BE
year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year. NEFZEREE-

4. Current ratio is calculated based on the year-end current assets divided by the year-end 4. ML ERRBEFRABDEERUFRABHAGTE -

current liabilities.

Pledge of Assets BEEEH

No leasehold land and land use rights and property, plant and equipment 720159 ;2014512 A31H » NEEEA S i &
have been pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities as at 31  Tii{ERENYE  BE N RIEIEASAEBRITHRE

December 2015 and 2014. FO K o
Contingent Liabilities RAREE

Save as the financial guarantees as disclosed below, as at 31 December B N XFTI¥5E 2 B & &R REE 2015 2014
2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities. F12AN W EE(TERLABE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has given guarantee to banks in
respect of the banking facilities granted to an associate of the Group of
approximately HK$656,497,000 (2014: approximately HK$986,183,000),
of which approximately HK$179,045,000 (2014: approximately
HK$423,374,000) have been drawn down.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the capital expenditure of
the Group was approximately HK$266,140,000 (2014: approximately
HK$243,811,000) related to the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s outstanding derivative financial
instrument assets and liabilities under various copper and aluminium
future contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to
approximately HK$9,249,000 and HK$7,751,000 respectively (2014:
derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities of approximately
HK$25,975,000 and HK$16,601,000 respectively).

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

During the Year, approximately 30% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from export trading settled in Euro and US dollars. In the meantime, the
Group has also imported raw materials and equipment from the suppliers
which were paid in Euro and US dollars for settlement. As a result, foreign
exchange risks associated with these currencies were partially offset. On
the other hand, the Group has made arrangements to purchase foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposure
arising from export trading. The Group has stringent control over the risk of
exchange rate fluctuation, and will review from time to time the sufficiency
and appropriateness of the financial instruments which were currently used
to hedge significant foreign currency risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has contracted capital commitments
in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$67,906,000 (2014: approximately HK$196,928,000).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately 8,958
full time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. While the Group was
supported by a team of young and competent staff, it does not ignore the
importance of the development, management and future planning of its
human resources. With the use of open recruitment, job rotation, internal
promotion and professional training for the recruitment, deployment and
nurture of employees, it is intended to ensure the selection and deployment
of employees to be carried out in an open, fair and equitable manner.
Besides, it could also provide staff with a platform for their promotion
and development. Through the implementation of comprehensive human
resources management, it is aimed at achieving the objectives of enhancing
employees contributions to the Group and shaping the Group’s strategic
advantages in human resources.

The Group has granted share options to employees as an incentive to
motivate its employees by linking their interests to the future development
and expansion of the Group. The Group currently provides employees with
competitive remuneration packages (comprising salary, bonus and benefits
in kind), adequate insurance cover (including pension, medical insurance,
unemployment compensation insurance, work injury compensation
insurance and maternity insurance) and housing provident fund. In addition,
the Group also provides its employees with other benefits including on-
the-job academic education, meal subsidy, housing subsidy, cooperative
medical scheme services, support fund and recreational activities, etc.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

The Company has always endeavoured to achieve a high standard
of corporate governance so as to enhance the transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company. The board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance
will contribute to maximise the corporate value of the Company to its
shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its corporate governance policies and
practices.

The Executive Committee of the Company was entrusted by the Board
with delegated authority to review the Company’s compliance with the
corporate governance practices. Having considered the review presented
by the Executive Committee, the Board confirmed that, save as disclosed
below, the Company had complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
during the Year.

The Company had deviated from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
in that Mr. Zhou Xiangyang was both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Xiangyang on
9 July 2015, the Board had reviewed the Board composition and decided
to segregate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company. In this connection, Mr. Xiang Weimin was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. Zhong Lin, currently an Executive Director,
was also re-designated as the Chief Executive Officer since 9 July 2015.

In respect of code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2015 due to other
important business engagement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future development
direction, overall strategies and policies, the evaluation of the performance
of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of
material and substantial in nature. Senior management of the Company
was delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group.
Senior management of each division is responsible for different businesses
and functions of the Group in accordance with its particular area of
expertise. The Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Details of these Board committees are set out below in
this report.

The Board has regularly reviewed the contribution required from a Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether he/she
is spending sufficient time performing his/her duties. Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are active in participating regular
Board meetings and other Board meetings for discussing and approving
significant issues of the Group so as to make an effective Board for a
timely strategic decision and to ensure the operations of the Group in line
with such strategies. Independent Non-executive Directors perform their
monitoring role and devote their time and effort to make contribution to the
development of strategies and internal control and risk management of the
Group.

For each of the Board meetings held during the Year, each Director had
been consulted beforehand and served with prior notice to enable him/her
to include matters in the agenda of the forthcoming Board meeting.
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The Board will hold four regular meetings every year at approximately
quarterly intervals. The Company generally gives at least 14 days notice
in advance for regular Board meetings and gives reasonable notice for all
other Board meetings in order to give all Directors opportunity to attend the
meetings. During the Year, the Company had complied with the said notice
requirements for Board meetings by giving all Directors adequate time
to plan their schedules to attend. All Directors are active in participating
the regular Board meetings, whether in person or through telephone
conference or video conference, to make an effort to contribute to the
affairs to be dealt with by Directors at the Board meetings.

All Directors could have accessed to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures are complied with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations and corporate governance practices
and policies.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed at the meetings. For each of the Board meetings held
during the Year, draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings
were sent to all Directors within reasonable time (generally within 14 days
for both cases) after the Board meeting had been held for their comments
and records respectively. All Board minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and open for inspection by all Directors at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all Directors the
rights, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting but not a written resolution. Subject
to the exceptions set out in the Listing Rules, a Director shall not vote on
any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest
nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum present at the relevant Board
meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance was arranged by the Company. The Board will review
regularly to ensure there is adequate insurance cover for the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are performed by separate individuals so as to enhance the division of
responsibilities between them and to ensure a balance of power and
authority. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
currently held by Mr. Xiang Weimin and Mr. Zhong Lin respectively.

The role of the Chairman is to be responsible for taking the lead of the
Board in determining the strategic direction of the Group, ensuring that all
Directors are properly briefed on business contemplated at Board meetings
and receive timely, adequate, complete and reliable information, good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established as well
as managing a good relationship and communication with shareholders.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company with the support of other
Executive Directors is responsible for implementation of strategic planning
of different business functions and day-to-day management of business
and operations of the Group.

During the Year, the Chairman held a meeting with all Independent Non-
executive Directors without the Executive Directors present.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised of nine Directors, including
six Executive Directors, Mr. Xiang Weimin (Chairman), Mr. Zhong Lin (Chief
Executive Officer), Ms. Pan Xinling, Mr. Li Li, Ms. Yuan Liqun and Mr. Li
Feide and three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Tan Jinsong,
Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao. Throughout the Year, the
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing at least one-third of the board) including at
least one independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The biographies of each of the Directors are set out on pages 42 to 45
in this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. In addition, a list containing the names of the
Directors and their roles and functions is available on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX").
Directors are advised to inform the Company of any change to the number
and nature of offices they held in public companies or organisations and
their other significant commitments in a timely manner.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships with each other.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board and confirmed that the Company has maintained
a balanced composition with a strong independent element on the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are active in participating in
Board meetings to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. They will take the lead where potential conflicts
of interests of other Directors arise. They serve as members of various
Board committees and will scrutinise the performance of the Group in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives and monitor performance
reporting.

Mr. Lam Ming Yung has served the Board as an Independent Non-
executive Director for more than nine years. Given his professional
knowledge and experience and no connection with any Director or
substantial shareholder of the Company and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules), the Board considered that Mr. Lam is
independent despite of his long term service with the Company.

The annual confirmation of independence made by each of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules were received by the Company and reviewed by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has assessed their
independence and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered independent within the definitions of the Listing
Rules.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”)
require that (i) every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
and (i) the Managing Director of the Company (if any) shall whilst holding
office as such be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire by rotation in each year.

The Articles of Association provide that at every annual general meeting of
the Company, and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
a Director may be appointed or engaged, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that, notwithstanding anything therein, every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code,
any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. The Board
is of the view that such mechanism helps to ensure orderly succession to
the appointments to the Board and that changes to its composition can be
managed without undue disruption.

On 29 May 2015, the Company entered into letters of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao, each an
Independent Non-executive Directors, for a term commencing on 29
May 2015 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general
meeting.

All these letters of appointment shall be terminable by either party upon one
month’s written notice to the other party or the payment to other party of a
sum equal to the relevant Director’s monthly remuneration.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the nomination of new
Directors for appointment by the Board. Any nomination of Director will be
reviewed and discussed by the Nomination Committee on the nominee’s
qualifications, experience and ability relevant to the requirements of the
Company’s business.
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According to the Articles of Association, the Board has the power from time
to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall be eligible for re-election but shall not be taken into
account in determining the number of Directors to retire by rotation at such
meeting.

The Nomination Committee has examined the terms of appointment
of Directors, and also reviewed and assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and made recommendation to the
Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Directors Continuous Training and Development
Programme

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company under
statute and common law, each of the newly appointed Director will
receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction and also the
orientation package containing the information with regard to the duties
and responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances
and relevant regulatory requirements and the business and corporate
governance policies of the Company.

Subsequently, updated information and continuous professional
development training will also be provided by the Company to all the
Directors when necessary to keep them abreast of the latest changes and
development in legal, regulatory and corporate governance requirements
and develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Besides of arranging formal training
seminars for the Directors, the Company Secretary will circulate the latest
news and information about the Company published in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the requirements of the code provision set out in the CG Code,
all Directors have to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has put
in place on-going training and professional development programme for
Directors to help them discharge their duties. Directors are also required to
provide to the Company records of other training they received to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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During the Year, the Company organised an in-house seminar for the
Directors and senior management and invited the auditor of the Company
as the speaker to present to the Directors and senior management (i) the
new regulatory requirements and updates on risk management and internal
control, and Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide;
and (i) the case studies relating to inside information. Each of the newly
appointed Executive Directors during the Year, including Mr. Xiang Weimin,
Ms. Pan Xinling and Mr. Li Li, had attended a director induction seminar
organised by the solicitor of distinguished law firm.

Supply of and Access to Information

In connection with the convening of regular Board meetings and any
meeting of the Board committees, agenda of the meeting accompanying
with the relevant documents will be sent to all Directors or members of the
Board committee at least 3 days before the date of the Board meeting or
Board committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
members of the Board and the Board committees to make informed
decisions. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered
by management, each Director may contact senior management
through individual and independent channel(s) to make further enquires if
necessary and such enquiries will be responded to by management within
a reasonable time with sufficient details. Furthermore, minutes of Board
meetings or meetings of Board committees are open for inspection by
Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice given.

During the Year, all Directors had been provided, on a monthly basis, with
the updated management and financial information of the Group, giving
them an opportunity to have a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s latest performance, position and recent developments and
facilitating them to discharge their duties under the relevant requirements of
the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees with defined scope of
duties in written form. These Board committees are the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to obtain independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the expense of the
Company if they consider necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 5 August 1999.
All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom has possessed professional qualifications
and accounting and financial management related expertise. During the
Year, the Audit Committee comprised of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Ming
Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing
and monitoring the integrity of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
and risk management of the Group, reviewing the findings from the
works carried out by the internal audit department and monitoring the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of the external auditor and approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor. Before commencement of
annual audit, the Audit Committee will discuss with the external auditor the
nature and scope of audit, the significant risk analysis and the impact of the
change in accounting policies on the financial statements of the Group. The
Audit Committee is required to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards.

The Audit Committee will liaise with the Board and senior management
regularly and meet at least twice a year with the Company’s external
auditor.
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The Audit Committee had performed the following works for the year ended
31 December 2015:

(i)

(i)

(V)

(vii)

(il

(i)

(xi)

reviewed the Company’s 2014 annual report and the preliminary
announcement of final results;

reviewed the Company’s 2015 interim report and the preliminary
announcement of interim results;

reviewed Audit Committee Report provided by the external auditor on
their statutory audit of the 2014 annual financial statements;

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor for 2015 audit and other matters;

reviewed the 2015 internal control report prepared by the internal
audit department and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system and risk management of the Group;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year;

acted as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor and reviewed and monitored the
external auditor’s independence and the non-audit services provided
by the external auditor;

reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes;

advised on significant events of the Company and highlighted the
related risks to the management;

reviewed arrangements for employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters and confirmed that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of
these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

reviewed and approved the revised terms of reference of Audit
Committee.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2015 consolidated financial
statements, including the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor and
recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the re-
appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the year 2016. The recommendation will be put forward
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external Hong Kong auditor, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers for audit services was approximately
HK$2,425,000 (2014: HK$2,463,000) and for non-audit services was
approximately HK$146,000 (2014: HK$522,000).

The remuneration paid/payable to other audit firms for audit services was
approximately HK$38,000 (2014: HK$76,000) and for non-audit services
was approximately HK$37,000 (2014: HK$145,000).

The latest version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and HKEx.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 22
September 2005. Chairman and majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors. As
at 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee comprised of five
members including three Independent Non-executive Directors, Ms. Cao
Zhoutao (chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tan Jinsong and
Mr. Lam Ming Yung and two Executive Directors, Mr. Xiang Weimin and

Mr. Li Li.

The Company has adopted the model set out in code provision B.1.2(c)(i)
of the CG Code as its Remuneration Committee model under which the
Remuneration Committee shall determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

to review and determine, with delegated responsibilities and
authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Independent Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss of termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensative arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee had performed the following works for the

year ended 31 December 2015:

U

(i)

reviewed the remuneration proposals for Executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the achievement of corporate
goals and objectives set by the Board;

approved the remuneration packages of Executive Directors (except
Mr. Xiang Weimin and Mr. Li Li) and senior management after
consultations with the Chairman;
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(i) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of Mr. Xiang
Weimin and Mr. Li Li in a committee meeting at which they abstained
from voting in respect of the resolutions approving their own
remuneration package; and

(iv) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration and terms of appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Company’s remuneration policy for Executive Directors and senior
management are set on the basis that the remuneration level of Executive
Directors and senior management will be linked with their responsibilities
and contributions to the achievement of corporate performance target of
the Company as resolved by the Board from time to time. For the purpose
of determining the level of remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management, appraisal of the work performance of the Executive Directors
and senior management will be conducted annually at the end of each year.
Such work performance of Executive Directors and senior management will
be judged by the extent to which the Group’s budget target is met and the
financial performance of the Group. Proposals for remuneration of Executive
Directors and senior management will be prepared by the human resources
department based on the relevant remuneration data and prevailing market
conditions and submitted to the Remuneration Committee for consideration
and approval. Director’'s fee payable to Independent Non-executive
Directors shall be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
and determined by the Board after taking into account the recommendation
made by the Remuneration Committee. No Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2015 was as follows:
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BEEABZERIERAKEBAREBERERRZ
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£2015F12A31 8 I FE IR F AR 25 &9 5 B 20
T

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band (HK$) AR (BE) A
Nil to 3,000,000 £ £3,000,000 5

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The latest version of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is available on the websites of the Company and HKEx.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 9 March
2012 with majority of its members being Independent Non-executive
Directors. As at 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee comprised
of five members including two Executive Directors, Mr. Xiang Weimin
(chairman of Nomination Committee) and Mr. Li Li and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao
Zhoutao.

The Company has adopted a policy for the nomination of Directors
concerning the factors to be considered for achieving the diversity of
the Board in October 2013. Selection of Board members is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and other qualities that the Board may consider relevant and
applicable from time to time. The Company shall review and monitor the
implementation of this policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the
structure, size, composition of the Board at least annually, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee had performed the following works for the year
ended 31 December 2015:

(i) considered and approved the recommendation to the Board of the
appointment of Executive Directors to fill the casual vacancies arisen
from the resignation of Executive Directors;

(ii) formulated the nomination policy for appointment of Directors to be
submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities of
Directors) of the Board, the competences of Directors and the
balance between Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, and is of the view that there is an appropriate and diverse
mix of skills and experience;

(iv)  reviewed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and confirmed that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
considered independent; and
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(v)  reviewed the profile and performance of Directors who will be
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
of Association at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of those retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The latest version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and HKEX.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board on 18 April 2006.
As at 31 December 2015, the Executive Committee comprised of all the
Executive Directors, Mr. Xiang Weimin (chairman of Executive Committee),
Mr. Zhong Lin, Ms. Pan Xinling, Mr. Li Li, Ms. Yuan Liqun and Mr. Li Feide.

Under its term of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible
for determining matters relating to the Group’s day-to-day operations
management and administration. In addition, the Executive Committee was
delegated with the duties and responsibilities to monitor and oversee the
corporate governance functions of the Group.

The Executive Committee had performed the following works relating
to the corporate governance functions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015:

(i) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(ii) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  reviewed and monitored the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code contained in
the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The latest version of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee is
available on the website of the Company.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

The attendance record of each of the Directors at the Board meetings,
Audit Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meeting of the Company held for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and the tenure of office of each individual
Director are set out in the following table:

EETHESRLE

REEZHFEARARREHE015F12A831BILFER
EREEEEHHARTHNESS SR FiXE8
TR FHEEeeH REZECCHANREKX

ZREFHBEN TR

B I o

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting
= ES898 ENZEE8E FHZEe9E REZEE9 BRRAE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
iEa)) (B3E2)
Number of Mesting(s) held SRBTRY 9 3 1 4 1
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Xiang Weimin MERLE
(appointed on 9 July 2015) (720157 AR EZT) 6/6 - il 2/2 -
Mr. Zhong Lin EMEE 8/9 - - - 11
Ms. Pan Xinling EEi g
(appointed on 9 July 2015) (720157 AR EZT) 6/6 - - - -
Mr. Li Li Ebis
(appointed on 23 November 2015) (P2015F11 A23REZE) il - il 0/0 -
Ms. Yuan Liqun RFELT 79 - - - 11
Mr. Li Feide FRERE 8/9 - - - 0/
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang ARG EE
(resigned on 9 July 2015) (FA2015%F7 A9HEHT) 1/3 - - 0/2 il
Mr. Yu Yonghua RKERE
(resigned on 9 July 2015) (FA201557 A9B BHT) 2/3 - - - 11
Mr. Luo Huagang BEMKE
(resigned on 10 November 2015) (FA2015%11 A10B B {E) 6/7 - - 2/3 11
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Tan Jinsong EYMELE 9/9 3/3 il 4/4 1N
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MABELAE 9/9 3/3 il 4/4 0/1
Ms. Cao Zhoutao ENERL 9/9 3/3 11 4/4 oA
Notes: BT -
1. The Board held four regular meetings and five additional meetings. 1. EEERTUATHEZRAANRRSE -
2. The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 29 May 2015. Mr. Li Feide, 2. A EF2015F5 F29 R BT BRI F R g o B A4 -

Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao were unable to attend such meeting due to
other important business engagement.

MABRAERENBLLTARSAEEMERZEBLRHMA
BEHEEMEHE-
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary has been a full time employee appointed by
the Board who has knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board policies and
procedures are duly followed, and also acts as the secretary of the Board
committees to ensure that all records of meeting proceedings, discussion
and decision of such Board committees are properly kept. The Company
Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for
facilitating the induction to be provided to newly appointed Directors and
continuous professional development training to be provided to existing
Directors and advising the Board through the Chairman on corporate
governance matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company Secretary had
completed at least 15 hours’ professional training by attending the
continuing professional development programmes as well as seminars
covering regulatory updates and professional knowledge about company
secretarial duties launched by professional bodies.

All Directors could have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Company which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”).

The statements of the Directors and the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 70 to 71
of this annual report.

Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating or
Preserving Business Value

An analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy and long term business
model adopted for delivering the objectives of the Company is set out in the
Chairman’s Statement of this annual report.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective internal
control system in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
fraud or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objective.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (i) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Company’s assets;
(iiy ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (i) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and the internal audit department regularly review the Group’s
internal control system which covers financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions to ensure that it remains
efficient and effective.

The Company has a full set of Internal Control System Manual (the
“Manual”) which was approved by the Board. The Manual contains a
comprehensive overview and description of the objectives, content,
methods and duties of the internal control system, and facilitates the
ongoing examination and evaluation of the Company’s compliance with
existing rules and regulations and of the effectiveness of internal controls.
During the Year, the Company consistently applied the full set of Manual
which covers the control of high-risk areas of operations, suppliers, sales,
finance and personnel management. The Board has, through the Audit
Committee, carried out ongoing examination and monitoring of the Group’s
internal control system.

During the Year, the Group based on the internal audit findings and
improvement plans submitted by the internal audit department to the Audit
Committee continued to enhance and improve the internal control system
of the Group.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are properly
authorised and proper accounting records are maintained. The Board
has reviewed and considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function are adequate.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all holders of the ordinary
shares in the issued share capital of the Company shall have the same
rights.

1. Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries
to the Company:

Shareholders and other stakeholders may, at any time, send their
enquiries or concerns to the Company in writing through the following
contact details:

The Company’s registered office: Suite 3904, 39/F, Tower 6
The Gateway, Harbour City
9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email of Company Secretary: comsec@welling.com.hk
Email of Investor Relations: wlir@welling.com.hk

2. Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”):

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings, may
request the Company to convene an EGM, in accordance with the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 566 to 568 of
the Companies Ordinance. The written requisition must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the EGM and
must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the Company’s registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form. The written
requisition may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the shareholder(s) concerned.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date on which the
written requisition is received by the Company proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date
on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM,
provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the date of requisition.

Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at an annual general meeting:

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate, or at least
50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate, may request
the Company to give notice of a resolution to be proposed at that
annual general meeting, in accordance with the requirements and
procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies
Ordinance.

The written requisition must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office for the
attention of the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form, not later than 6 weeks before that annual general meeting or, if
later, the time at which notice is given of that annual general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director:

Pursuant to Article 90 of the Articles of Association, no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting, unless notice in writing by a shareholder of
the intention to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his/her wilingness to be elected
shall have been given to the Company in the period commencing no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such general meeting, provided that such period
shall be at least 7 days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting is an open forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders of the Company.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings of the
Company and give valuable advice to the Company through this direct
communication platform. The Company will convene an annual general
meeting every year and convene any other general meetings as required.
Sufficient notice for annual general meeting and other general meetings
will be given to shareholders in compliance with the requirements of the
Articles of Association, the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
The Chairman of the Board will attend annual general meeting and invite
the chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and other Board Committees, in their absence, other members
of these Board Committees, to attend annual general meeting. They
will be available to answer questions raised by shareholders at annual
general meeting. The chairman or other members of the independent
board committee (if any) will be available to answer questions at any
general meetings for the approval of connected transaction(s) or any other
transaction(s) by independent shareholders. External auditor will be invited
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

To facilitate enforcement of shareholders’ rights, substantially different
issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general meetings of the
Company.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the Company fall
to be disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements will be published
in a timely manner through the Company’s website so as to safeguard the
shareholders’ rights of information.
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The Company’s website provides timely and updated information on
investor relations, corporate governance and other latest news of the
Company to enable shareholders and investors to have timely access to
information about the Group.

The investor relations department of the Company is responsible for
handling the communications with our investors, it will regularly organise
road shows and one-on-one meetings with institutional investors and
financial analysts to promote better understanding of the Company and
keep continuous dialogues with professional investors.

The Company has established the shareholders communication policy
which is available on the Company’s website.

Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other than
on procedural matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct
of the poll were explained to the shareholders at the commencement of
each general meeting. An independent scrutineer was appointed to count
the votes and the poll results were posted on the websites of the Company
and HKEx respectively on the same day following each general meeting.

Constitutional Document

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2015, the
Company has adopted a new set of Articles of Association in substitution
for, and to the exclusion of, the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association as amended by the new Companies Ordinance which came
into force on 3 March 2014. A copy of the latest version of Articles of
Association was published on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Xiang Weimin, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since 9 July 2015. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Xiang joined Midea Group in 1991. He held various
senior management positions in Midea Group and has considerable
business operations and management experience in new product
development, technical management, operations and human resources
management, sales and marketing management, and overall business
operations management. Mr. Xiang holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree
and a Master of Engineering Degree from Northeast Heavy Machinery
Institute (now known as Yanshan University) and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from China Europe International Business School.

Mr. Zhong Lin, aged 36, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since 21 October
2014 and re-designated as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 9 July 2015. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Zhong joined Midea Group in July 2000. He held various senior
management positions in Midea Group and has extensive experience in
production management, purchasing and supply chain management. Mr.
Zhong holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Nanjing
University. He was awarded the international certificate in purchasing and
supply chain management by International Trade Centre.

Ms. Pan Xinling, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director, the
Chief Financial Officer, a member of the Executive Committee and an
authorised representative of the Company since 9 July 2015. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Pan joined Midea Group in
1999. She held various senior and middle management positions in Midea
Group and is familiar with research and development, sales and marketing,
and production system business. She has extensive experience in overall
cost accounting management. Ms. Pan holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Wood-working Machinery and a Master’'s Degree in Management from
Northeast Forestry University. She is an accountant accredited by the
Ministry of Personnel People’s Republic of China.
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Mr. Li Li, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee of the Company since 23 November 2015. He is the
director of operations and human resources department and also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Li joined Midea Group in July 2002.
He held various senior management positions in Midea Group and has
extensive experience in sales and marketing, operations management and
human resources. In addition, Mr. Li was responsible for and participated
in certain sizable strategic merger and acquisition projects in PRC and
overseas, joint venture negotiations for cooperation in the overseas market
as well as reorganisation after merger and acquisition. Mr. Li holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree from Tsinghua University.

Ms. Yuan Liqun, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of
the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an Executive
Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company and also a director of a subsidiary of
the Group. She joined Midea Group in 1992. She has held various senior
management positions in Midea Group and has considerable experience
in finance, audit and overall management. Ms. Yuan is a director, vice-
president and chief financial officer of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and the chairman of Midea Group
Finance Co., Ltd. She was a director and the supervisor of GD Midea
Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which were de-listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange on 18 September 2013 and this company was de-
registered on 19 December 2013). Ms. Yuan holds a Master of International
Management Degree from The Australian National University.

Mr. Li Feide, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since 12 December
2012. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Li joined Midea
Group in July 1999. Mr. Li is a director, vice-president and chief officer of
the strategic development of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He was a director and the board secretary
of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which were de-listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 18 September 2013 and this company was
de-registered on 19 December 2013) and a director of Wuxi Little Swan
Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr.
Li holds a Bachelor's Degree of Mechanical Engineering and Automation
and a Bachelor’s Degree of Financial Management and Economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology and an Executive Master
of Business Administration Degree (EMBA) from the Sun Yat-sen University.
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Mr. Tan Jinsong, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 August 2009. Mr. Tan is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He was
approved as a PRC registered accountant in June 1995 and has become
a non-practicing member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2003. He possesses over 30 years of
experience in the profession of accounting and financial management. Mr.
Tan is currently a professor of the School of Management of Sun Yat-sen
University and was the Head of Department of the Faculty of Accountancy
and the Vice Dean of the School of Management of Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Tan is an independent director of Guangzhou Hengyun Enterprises
Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. and Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai
(both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and China
Southern Airlines Company Limited (@ company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the New York
Stock Exchange).

Mr. Tan was an independent director of a number of PRC listed companies,
including Yihua Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Sundiro Holding Co., Ltd., (both
companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and Grandhope
Biotech Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange).
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Mr. Lam Ming Yung, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 December 1999. Mr. Lam is a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated from the School of
Law of Shanghai Eastern Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence
with a Bachelor of Law Degree in 1986, started practicing law in the
province of Fujian in PRC in 1987, and moved to Hong Kong in mid-1993.
He was registered as a foreign lawyer with The Law Society of Hong Kong
in July 1995. Mr. Lam is the chief executive officer of a private investment
management company.

Mr. Lam was the Chief PRC Consultant, Corporate Finance, and Foreign
Legal Consultant (PRC) in the Hong Kong office of Sidley Austin LLP.

Ms. Cao Zhoutao, aged 44, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 21 October 2013. Ms. Cao
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She
is an associate professor of School of Business Administration of South
China University of Technology. She has extensive experience in human
resources, organisation behavior, financial management and accounting.
Ms. Cao holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in Management
Engineering from Chongqing Industrial Management School, a Master
of Engineering Degree in Management Engineering and a Doctor of
Management Degree in Management Science and Engineering from South
China University of Technology. She is a certified public accountant of
China.

Ms. Cao is an independent director of Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery
Co., Ltd. and Vtron Technologies Ltd. (both companies are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
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Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Fu Yongjun, aged 47, joined the Group in July 2015 and is the deputy
general manager of the Group. Mr. Fu was employed by Midea Group in
October 1999 and held various senior and middle management positions
in Midea Group. He has extensive experience in business in sales, strategic
marketing and sales management. Mr. Fu holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Refrigerating Equipment and Cryogenic Technique from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology and an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree (EMBA) from Tsinghua University.

Mr. Huang Nianzhou, aged 50, joined the Group in July 2015 and is
the director of quality control department of the Group. Mr. Huang was
employed by Midea Group in July 1988 and held various senior and middle
management positions in Midea Group. He is familiar with production
process and integrated management of the motor business and has
considerable industry experience in management. Mr. Huang holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Technology and Equipment
from Shaanxi Institute of Mechanical Engineering (now known as Xi'an
University of Technology).

Mr. Wang Hongxiao, aged 41, joined the Group in September 1999 and
is the officer of research and development institute of the Group. Mr. Wang
has held various senior and middle management positions in the Group
and is familiar with production process and integrated management of the
Group’s motor business. He has been in charge of various jobs relating to
the development of new products. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors hereby present this report of the Directors and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities, Geographical Analysis of
Operations and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating segment
is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 4 to
19 of this annual report.

Final Results

The final results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 74.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6.5
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK7.5 cents). Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2016
(the “AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 17 June
2016 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 7 June 2016.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders’ rights of attending and
voting at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 26 May 2016 to 31 May 2016, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 May 2016.
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For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders who are entitled
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 6 June 2016 to 7 June 2016, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2016.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Notes 36 and 18 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. Shares
were issued during the Year on exercise of share options.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$246,707,000 (2014: HK$276,476,000).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 188. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.
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Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme adopted on 27 June 2003 (the “2003 Share
Option Scheme”) was terminated on 30 May 2013 and a new share
option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 30 May 2013.

Details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme and the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Xiang Weimin (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 July 2015)
Mr. Zhong Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated on 9 July 2015)
Ms. Pan Xinling
(appointed on 9 July 2015)
Mr. Li Li
(appointed on 23 November 2015)
Ms. Yuan Liqun
Mr. Li Feide
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang
(resigned on 9 July 2015)
Mr. Yu Yonghua
(resigned on 9 July 2015)
Mr. Luo Huagang
(resigned on 10 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tan Jinsong
Mr. Lam Ming Yung
Ms. Cao Zhoutao

In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Xiang Weimin, Ms. Pan Xinling and Mr. Li Li, who were appointed by the
Board to fill casual vacancies during the Year, will retire as Directors of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Zhong Lin, Ms. Yuan Liqun and Mr. Lam Ming Yung will retire by rotation
as Directors of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Zhou Xiangyang, Mr. Yu Yonghua and Mr. Luo Huagang has
confirmed to the Board that he has no disagreement with the Board and
the Company, and nothing relating to his resignation or the affairs of the
Company needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company.

Directors of Subsidiaries

A list of the names of the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report can be found in the
Company’s website.

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 29 May 2015, the Company entered into letters of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao, each an
Independent Non-executive Directors, for a term commencing on 29 May
2015 and ending on the date of the AGM.

The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that the remuneration
of the Directors shall be determined in accordance with the remuneration
policy as approved by the Board from time to time. Such letters of
appointment are terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice
given to the other party or the payment of a sum equal to the relevant
Director’'s monthly remuneration made to the other party. These letters
of appointment are exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has submitted to the
Company the annual confirmation of independence for the year ended
31 December 2015. Nomination Committee has reviewed such annual
confirmation of independence and assessed the independence of each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent. The Board adopted the view of
the Nomination Committee and confirmed that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the principles that the
remuneration packages of employees should be determined based on
the job duties, responsibilities, work performance, qualifications and
competence of each individual employee, performance of the Group and
the prevailing market and economic conditions in order to attract and retain
high-calibre employees needed to run the Company successfully.

The remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company are reviewed annually and determined by
the Remuneration Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each
individual Executive Director and senior management staff, performance of
the Group and the remuneration packages paid by comparable companies
in the same industry based on the prevailing market conditions. No Director
or any of his/her associates will be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors will
be reviewed annually and recommended by the Remuneration Committee
to the Board for final approval.

After the termination of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the Company
has adopted the 2013 Share Option Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives to stimulate the Directors of the Company and eligible employees
of the Group.
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Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set out in Note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

Indemnity of Directors and Officers

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
Companies Ordinance, every Director and officer of the Company shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges,
expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution or holding of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during the Year.
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 42 to 46.
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Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“‘SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
adopted by the Company contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long positions in shares
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BEEESRE
2. Long positions in underlying shares — share options 2. REBEROZEFR-BRE
(A)  The Company A ARF
Movement of the share options granted to the following RARFE > AT 8 B4R 1520034 B8 A% #
Director under the 2003 Share Option Scheme during the Year STEIERERENEEHEROT

was as follows:

Balance Balance
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of Exercise Exercisable 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant price period 2015 the Year the Year the Year 2015
120155 20155
161A REERE REEE RAEE 12A31A
#e REAH e TEH 2R BRH [Xig;d BAM A ]
HKS
B
Mr. Lam Ming Yung 30/07/2007 39 30/07/2007 - 400,000 - - - 400,000
HRBERE 29/07/2017
Details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are disclosed in 2003F FEMAE T B 2 B A IS 5
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. RMFEI7THE -
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BEEESRE
(B) Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) B) EMEERMNBMRAR([E/])
The following Directors have personal interests in share options LTESHEAARBIERAGENZE
to subscribe for shares in Midea, the holding company of IREARBER N 2 BAEDR - HER
the Company. Movements of the share options held by them AEERBAEZERENZSHBEROT

during the Year were as follows:

Balance Balance
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of Exercise Exercisable 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant price period 2015 the Year the Year the Year 2015
120155 R2015%
1A1A REERE REEE REEE 124318
#H RAAH e s 2Bt BRH EEix:d BAM 2E8
RMB
N
Mr. Zhong Lin 18/02/2014 17.72 (Note 2) 225,000 - (69,000) - 166,000
EMEE (Note 1) GE)
(M)
27/05/2015 30.54 (Note 3) - 180,000 - - 180,000
iER)
Ms. Pan Xinling 18/02/2014 17.72 (Note 2) 225,000 - (75,000) - 150,000
EHRAL (Note 1) GE)
(M)
27/05/2015 30.54 (Note 3) - 120,000 - - 120,000
iER)
Mr. LiLi 18/02/2014 17.72 (Note 2) 225,000 - (75,000) - 150,000
Ehik (Note 1) GE)
(M)
27/05/2015 30.54 (Note 3) - 150,000 - - 150,000
iER)
Mr. Li Feide 18/02/2014 17.72 (Note 2) 750,000 - - - 750,000
FRERE (Note 1) GE)
(M)
Mr. Yu Yonghua 18/02/2014 17.72 (Note 2) 225,000 - (75,000) - 150,000
(resigned on (Note 1) (F32) (Note 4)
9 July 2015) GE) GED)
FKELE 27/05/2015 30.54 (Note 3) - 150,000 - - 150,000
(H2015% (GER) (Note 4)
THORE) (BizH4)
Mr. Luo Huagang 18/02/2014 17.72 (Note 2) 225,000 - (75,000) (150,000) -
(resigned on (Note 1) (F32) (Note 5)
10 November 2015) (Fis1) GED)
BE[LE 27/05/2015 30.54 (Note 3) - 150,000 - (150,000) -
(#0155 (GER) (Note 5)
11R10REE) (WizEs)
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Notes:

1. On 21 April 2014, the shareholders of Midea approved a bonus issue of shares on the
basis of 15 bonus shares for every 10 existing shares and the declaration of dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to the shareholders. Accordingly, adjustments were
made to the number of outstanding share options and the exercise price. The exercise
price per share of the share options was adjusted from RMB48.79 to RMB18.72 on
26 May 2014, and further adjusted to RMB17.72 on 27 April 2015 to reflect the effect of
declaration of dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 to the shareholders.

2. Subject to a vesting scale in three tranches and the achievement of the performance
target of each relevant period, the first tranche of share options shall be exercisable from
17 February 2015 to 17 February 2017, the second tranche of share options shall be
exercisable from 17 February 2016 to 17 February 2018 and the third tranche of share
options shall be exercisable from 17 February 2017 to 17 February 2019.

3. Subject to a vesting scale in three tranches and the achievement of the performance
target of each relevant period, the first tranche of share options shall be exercisable from
27 May 2016 to 27 May 2018, the second tranche of share options shall be exercisable
from 27 May 2017 to 27 May 2019 and the third tranche of share options shall be
exercisable from 27 May 2018 to 27 May 2020.

4, Mr. Yu Yonghua resigned as an Executive Director of the Company on 9 July 2015 due to
the new work deployment made to him by Midea.

5. Mr. Luo Huagang resigned as an Executive Director of the Company on 10 November
2015. Share options granted to him were lapsed due to his resignation.

6. No cash consideration was paid by each of the Directors for the grant of share options.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or subsidiary a party to any arrangements which enabled any Director to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or of any other body corporate.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2015, any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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EEEHRE

Interests and short positions of shareholders

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as at

31 December 2015, shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives

of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,

or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of the

Company

RERzERKRAR

MARFEMEFHSESITHA B 72015512
A318 RARRRNDIARRERND P EBREESF R
HRE 60 SEXVER B2 37 EMESUZBM AN A R BE 2
BEIAR RO RARR R EREES LS KA
E3B6FE 2 Bz EmsiokRs 2R (RAE

EXARSTRAERIMNNAT:

FERRAALDARD ZHFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding
RREA® g4 RO EE REMOBES L
Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited Beneficial owner 1,901,204,779 66.39%
(“Midea (Cayman Islands)”) (Note 1)
ENER (HEHS)BRAF E@lEAA
(IEK (REHB)]) (HF1)
Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited Interests of a controlled 1,901,204,779 66.39%
(“Midea Holding (BVI)”) (Note 2) corporation
EMIERBVIER A A R EE S
(IEREREBV)]) (FF2)
Midea (Note 3) Interests of controlled 1,965,702,779 68.64%
corporations
1 (MIEE3) R LB
Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“Midea Holding”) (Note 4)  Interests of controlled 1,965,702,779 68.64%
corporations
EMERBR AT ([FEHER]) (FFFE4) R EE S
Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5) Interests of controlled 1,965,702,779 68.64%

I Ff2se 4 (MEs)

corporations
FiAE R
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Notes:

1. These 1,901,204,779 shares of the Company were registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).

2. Midea Holding (BVI) was deemed to be interested in 1,901,204,779 shares of the
Company in which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested by virtue of its holding 100%
equity interest in Midea (Cayman Islands).

3. There were 64,498,000 shares of the Company registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Midea International Corporation Company Limited (“Midea International”) which
is a company owned as to 100% by Midea. Midea Holding (BVI) is also a company owned
as to 100% by Midea. Accordingly, Midea was deemed to be interested in the aggregate
of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company including 64,498,000 shares in which Midea
International was interested and 1,901,204,779 shares in which Midea Holding (BVI)
was deemed to be interested by virtue of its holding 100% equity interest in both Midea
International and Midea Holding (BVI).

4, The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 35.07% by Midea Holding and 1.14% by
Ningbo Kailian Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (@ company owned as to 30% by Midea
Holding and 70% by Mr. He Xiangjian). Accordingly, Midea Holding was deemed to be
interested in the aggregate number of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company in which
Midea was deemed to be interested by virtue of its holding equity interest in Midea.

5. The registered capital of Midea Holding is owned as to 94.55% by Mr. He Xiangjian.
Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested in the aggregate number
of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company in which Midea Holding was deemed to be
interested by virtue of his holding 94.55% equity interest in Midea Holding.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors was interested in any
business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.
Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group believes that it is essential to maintain a good relationship with
various stakeholders including its customers and suppliers. During the Year,
there was no significant dispute between the Group and its customers and/
or suppliers.

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total sales during the Year.

Purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers together accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase during the Year.

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected
Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions which were disclosed by published
announcements and/or circulars:

1. On 29 April 2013, the Company and Midea entered into a renewed
Midea framework agreement (the “Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement”) to set out the terms, and the new annual caps for
the sale of motors and electronic and electrical components for
electrical household appliances and raw materials by the Group to
Midea, its subsidiaries and associates, excluding the Company and
its subsidiaries (“Midea Group”) and the purchase of raw materials,
processed raw materials and motor samples by the Group from
Midea Group for the three years ending 31 December 2016. Details
of the transactions were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 29 April 2013 and circular dated 14 May 2013.

The Renewed Midea Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the new annual caps of the
aforesaid sale and purchase) were approved by the then independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2013.

TEFFRHRERS

REBERA BN aBBEAL (BREEP MR
BB REBRERSER RAFE AEEEE
BERE R/ EELEEEBRUD -

AEBRARERFEZHERRMEAERNATEE 28
EBEFKF30% °

AEBRRHER 2 RKBBEREAEENAFEZ
BRI AR IKR80% ©

RAEE REBETTATHER S RIFERER
5 (ERTBHAER/RBRHARE)

1. HR2018F4H20R - AR RIEEMFI L EEE
BIEZE s ([EEEMIERERZ]) - URRE
E20165FE12A31H IF=AFE  AEBEHSE
7 EMB AR REBEA (TRIEARF R
HBAR) ([ENEE]) HEREEULE
TERERERVE UEANEBHRENE
EEREE R MR A0 TR R K B AT AR
BEHRARFFEE LR -BRAZXSHFEDRA
A FIF20135F4 A29 R B ) A 5 R i20134F
S5H148 HIZE R NP #EEE -

EEENERBBREBETHRETIRS (8
ELMEEE 2 HEE LR) B RARARE2013
FE5A0BBITHRAFIAE LEAREE
e BB S AR SR L ©
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On 29 April 2013, the Company entered into a purchase framework
agreement (the “2013 ZS Framework Agreement”) with Zhejiang
Shangfeng Industrial Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Shangfeng”, a
company controlled by Mr. He Jianfeng who is the son of Mr. He
Xiangjian, the controlling shareholder of Midea) which set out the
basis for the purchase of raw materials by the Group from Zhejiang
Shangfeng, its subsidiaries and associates (“ZS Group”) and the
annual caps of transaction amount for the three years ended
31 December 2015. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2013 and circular dated
14 May 2013.

The 2013 ZS Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the annual caps of the aforesaid
purchase of raw materials) were approved by the then independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2013.

On 27 September 2013, the Company entered into an agreement
in relation to the intra group financial services (the “2013 Intra Group
Financial Services Agreement”) with Midea International Corporation
Company Limited (“Midea International”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Midea) which set out the basis for the provision of deposit services
and settlement and similar services by Midea International to the
Company and its subsidiaries outside the PRC and the annual caps
of transaction amount for a fixed term from 27 September 2013
to 31 December 2015. The 2013 Intra Group Financial Services
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27
September 2013.
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On 17 April 2014, the Company entered into a financial services
framework (renewal) agreement (the “2014 Financial Services
Framework Agreement”) with Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Finance Company”, a subsidiary of Midea) to set out the terms, and
the annual caps in respect of the core financial services (including
deposit, loan and financing, bills discounting, bills acceptance,
foreign exchange and guarantee services) for the three years ending
31 December 2017. The provision of deposit services by the
Finance Company to the Group under the 2014 Financial Services
Framework Agreement also constituted a major and connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
transactions were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
17 April 2014, 23 April 2014 and 14 May 2014 and circular dated 13
June 2014.

The 2014 Financial Services Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the annual caps
of the aforesaid core financial services) were approved by the then
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2014.

On 23 June 2014, the Company entered into a new logistic
service agreement (the “New Logistic Service Agreement”) with
Annto Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Annto”, a subsidiary of Midea) to (i)
revise the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2014 in
respect of the logistic service fees payable under the previous
logistic service agreement dated 11 January 2013 (the “Logistic
Service Agreement”); and (i) extend the term of the Logistic Service
Agreement for two more years to 31 December 2016 and set the
new annual caps of the aforesaid logistic service for a term of two
years ending 31 December 2016 in order to fulfill the operation needs
of the Group.

The New Logistic Service Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the revised and new annual caps
of the aforesaid logistic service) were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 June 2014.
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On 16 December 2015, the Company entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “2015 ZS Framework Agreement”) with
Zhejiang Shangfeng which set out the basis for the purchase of
raw materials by the Group from ZS Group and the annual caps
of transaction amount for the three years ending 31 December
2018. The 2015 ZS Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 December 2015.

On 17 December 2015, the Company entered into an agreement in
relation to the intra group financial services (the “2015 Intra Group
Financial Services Agreement”) with Midea International which set
out the basis for the provision of deposit services and settlement
and similar services by Midea International to the Company and its
subsidiaries outside the PRC and the annual caps of transaction
amount for the three years ending 31 December 2018. The 2015
Intra Group Financial Services Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 December 2015.
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The following table sets out the transaction amount of each of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the Year and the

relevant approved annual caps for 2015:

TR LAAEERAFE S BFEREIHH
RPEREN2OIGFEEMAENERFE LR

Transaction
amount for
the year ended Annual caps
31 December 2015 for 2015
BZ2015F12A318 L 2015
Transactions RS FENRSZSHE FELR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR TR
Sale of motors and electronic and electric RAENEEHEREEHR 2,943,019 6,000,000
components for electrical household ETEREMUREMHE
appliances and raw materials to Midea Group
Purchase of raw materials, processed REMEBERERME EmT 37,966 195,000
raw materials and motors samples from JRI R B A
Midea Group
Purchase of raw materials from ZS Group AT - R B R BB R i R 123,074 500,000
Financial services provided by the Finance Company 8112 BIIR L BV BF 5 IR
— Deposit (daily maximum outstanding balances —FR(BEEFFERTFEEN 1,659,676 2,762,600
including accrued interest and handling fee) AmE&ER)
— Loan (daily maximum outstanding balances —-EN (BEEFANMERFEEN - 1,286,380
including accrued interest and handling fee) AxE&Es)
- Bills discounting (aggregate face value of —RBREER (KRN ERBEE) 1,049,434 1,406,410
the bills discounted)
~ Bills acceptance (aggregate face value of —REAE (KEAENEBRAEE) 2,672,717 3,979,910
the bills accepted)
— Foreign exchange — N 417,815 3,046,540
— Guarantee —¥ER - 1,500,000
Logistic services paid to Annto and/or its IRRER/IENBARREH 54,587 80,000
subsidiaries R
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETRT
Provision of deposit services by Midea International R BEBRREHROT RS 57,957 80,000

(daily maximum outstanding balances including
accrued interest)

(BREFMNENEERSHER)
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Year and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board of Directors engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of
the Company, to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to the Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor has confirmed to the Company
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
the continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 as disclosed above:

(1) have not been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policy of the Company;

(8)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the amounts of annual caps as disclosed in the
announcements and/or circulars made by the Company in respect of
each of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements with respect to the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group in the normal course of business are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions which
constituted connected transaction or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules have complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of guarantees given
for the loan facilities granted to the associate by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$656,497,000 which exceeded 8% of the assets ratio
as defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2015,
bank loans of approximately HK$179,045,000 being guaranteed by the
Group to the associate have been drawn down. A pro-forma combined
statement of financial position of the associate, in which the Group has a
49% equity interest, as at 31 December 2015 is presented below:

BRBLRXS

AEEREREBBRETPILNERNFR TS Z
FBENR A WS RAMI TS5 < IRE L AR K
BRGIFEERFNEBER I XS ET L
AR BIE14AE

B EmRAFE13.22(%EH KT

2015512 A31 A - REE & AT ERERRE
Mgt 2 EIRE HAERLE1E656,497,0007T * #BiB £
TR BIE14.07(RATFRE 2 B ELL 8% 120155
12A318  REBFTER 2B A RIRITERAEE
179,045,000 T 2 412 B © 7820155F12 431 H » B4
EHEH40%WRIEZHE N T 2 HEEEHIBRRAERE
FAT

Pro-forma Group’s

combined attributable

statement of interest

financial position (49%)

BESH AEEELER

B ISR 3 2R (49%)

HK$ 000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

Non-current assets ERBAEE 800,218 392,107
Current assets RBEE 1,093,306 535,720
Current liabilities RBEE (1,074,424) (526,468)
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE (111,861) (54,812)
Non-controlling interest IR R (70,902) (34,742)
Net assets BEFE 636,337 311,805
Fair value adjustments NABERAE 1,163
Currency translation differences INEEITE =R (1,381)
311,587
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Non-Competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-competition deed in favour
of the Company (“Non-Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea and
other members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not engage in any
business of the manufacturing and distribution of motors and electronic
and electric components for all electrical household appliances and any
business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on by the Group
which would directly or indirectly compete with the business of the Group.

In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition Deed, Midea
has submitted to the Company the annual declaration confirming that
Midea and its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have complied
with all the provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015 (“Declaration”). The Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the Declaration and are satisfied with
the compliance by Midea and its associates with the provisions of the
Non-competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-competition Deed
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial position, business and prospects may be affected by
the following identified risks and uncertainties.

1. Business risk

The Group operates in highly competitive markets. Failure to
compete in terms of product quality, service quality, reliability or price
may have an adverse impact on the Group. In addition, intensifying
industrial competition might result in lower product prices, narrower
profit margins as well as loss of market share for the Group.

2.  Financial risk
The financial risk management of the Group, including foreign

exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk are shown in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Environmental Policy

Climate change has become a global concern as natural resources become
less and less abundant. This makes low carbon emission an extremely
important task for enterprises.

The Group is striving to achieve the targets of energy conservation and
emission reduction as well as cleaner production by ways of recycling and
technology upgrade. Our factory and offices have already made a start on
their green journey, and a selection of practices is extracted below:

1. Use of resources

The Group is committed to protecting and sustaining the environment
through reduced consumption of electrical power, much of which is
generated from the burning of carbon and other fossil fuels.

At our factory and offices, we are committed to a “SR Policy” i.e.
reduce, recycle and reuse.

° energy efficient lights covering most of the factory and office
spaces

° 99% lights being switched off during lunch hour

° maintaining the air-conditioned room temperature at 25T or
above

In 2015, we organised various activities for staff to learn about and
experience low carbon living which include recycling campaigns. For
instance, recycling bins are provided and paper waste is collected for
recycling.

REBRER
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2. Emissions

The Group has continued to improve its capabilities in increasing
recycling efficiency. In recycling used water, we strictly comply
with local environmental protection laws and regulations and take
necessary environmental protection measures so as to mitigate
impacts from production activities on the environment.

Meanwhile, the Group holds ISO14001 certification for the
environmental management systems and aims to strengthen
the monitoring, investigation, assessment and reporting on the
ecosystem of the production operation zones, in order to prevent any
environmental accident.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

Compliance with the Model Code and the
Corporate Governance Code

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 20 to
21 for the compliance with the Model Code and the Corporate Governance
Code.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained, during the Year, sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Welling Holding Limited
Xiang Weimin

Chairman

14 March 2016

M

REFERF N EBAERRAS WK &%
BEMERER YA ERABEBEREE  —HE
FEZE KRB R AHEN ISP R A SR B BED 2 R E
ERREEBRBFEAE LIZZ -

REFER
BERRERAR
EY -4

BER

201653 H14H

Annual Report 2015 & 69



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBEIRE

_E
pwc

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of Welling Holding Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Welling Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 72 to 187,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M A% B

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
2015512311

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BET T BEEF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FRE £ 0 N £ o A A 6 197,646 215,212
Property, plant and equipment W BE K& E 7 1,194,052 1,246,679
Investment properties REYE 8 46,591 52,435
Intangible assets mEEE 9 80,455 68,455
Investments accounted for using the AERIEARZIEE
equity method 11 345,897 328,918
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHEE 19 19,499 44,631
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 12 120,306 118,678
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment  FEfT#12 ~ E K& 708 14 5,103 55,811
2,009,549 2,130,819
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 13 554,938 991,946
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b UK 14 2,986,724 2,878,479
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBIA 22 9,249 25,975
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 12 720,857 -
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITHER 15 76,960 79,928
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEY 16 1,236,209 1,939,564
5,584,937 5,915,892
Total assets wmEE 7,594,486 8,046,711
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to the owners of RATEE AELER
the Company
Share capital N 17 4,966,858 4,965,641
Other reserves Efb & 18 (2,757,335) (2,539,934)
Retained earnings IREBEF 2,132,848 1,838,646
4,342,371 4,264,353
Non-controlling interests FEBRER 59,430 65,491
Total equity A 4,401,801 4,329,844
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
2015512311

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BET T BEEF T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSTHEE 19 136,224 120,007
Deferred government grants EREBT # Bh 20 32,137 34,615
168,361 154,622
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 5 ME M ER R 21 2,989,166 3,416,942
Derivative financial instruments TEeRmT A 22 7,751 16,601
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS B E 6,757 40,971
Borrowings BR 23 20,650 87,731
3,024,324 3,562,245
Total liabilities FLG= R 3,192,685 3,716,867
Total equity and liabilities EEhEEREE 7,594,486 8,046,711

The notes on pages 79 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 187 were approved

by the board of directors on 14 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

Xian

EF

g Weimin

[ER

N ETIE187 A 2 M ARG A MIEIREK 2 BB

e

F 22 N2016F3A14B L ERET2E187TH 2 474
PEHmE VREEFES

Director
-
Pan Xinling
B
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

— 32
meERmK
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZ2015F 12831 IEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT T
Revenue KA 5 8,040,366 9,273,399
Cost of goods sold HEBEMAKAR (6,930,634) (7,848,965)
Gross profit EF 1,109,732 1,424,434
Other gains/(losses) — net Hib Wz (F1E) — %58 24 90,279 (10,258)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMGHERYS (212,013) (214,414)
Administrative expenses TR X (428,348) (350,430)
Operating profit KERE 559,650 849,332
Finance expenses REEFISZ 27 (4,162) (54,609)
Finance income ELE=8 0N 27 24,137 16,416
Finance income/(expenses) — net BmERA (FAX) —F%8 27 19,975 (38,193)
Share of profit of associates accounted for DARE 250K A BR 2 FEAL
using the equity method NS 11 51,396 41,253
Profit before income tax MR AT B AT FIE 631,021 852,392
Income tax expense FriS %t 2 28 (108,322 (171,217)
Profit for the year FERE 522,699 681,175
Profit attributable to: LR A 4R RIME :
Owners of the Company VN/NCIETZ SN 525,030 678,372
Non-controlling interests eI (2,331) 2,803
522,699 681,175
Earnings per share attributable to AERATREEAELEBRER
the owners of the Company, DERABEWLYR
expressed in HK cents per share
Basic R 29 18.34 23.76
Diluted e 29 18.33 23.75

The notes on pages 79 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated — #AEE79E187 8 2 it AALR & B 2 48R0

financial statements.

e

74 Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

— 22
meEZHEWER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F12B31HIEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year FEEFHE 522,699 681,175
Other comprehensive income: Hih2HE K
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AJEF 7 2E 2 1B Y IE B
Currency translation differences SN H R (265,564) (11,198)
Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets At ESRmEENERE 11,704 6,011
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax FEHtZ2HEEE (KRB E) (253,860) (5,187)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHWKEARE 268,839 675,988
Total comprehensive income for the year DTATELEFELZAKRZELE:
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company A VNEIEZEPN 274,900 673,387
— Non-controlling interests —FEIER S (6,061) 2,601

268,839 675,988

The notes on pages 79 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ &N E7IE187E v Wit AL A B R < < 4ARK 3P
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HZE2015F12B31HIEFE
Attributable to the owners of the Company
/NI 2PN
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
e RAREE Hin i RERF B FERER BnlE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014F1 510 2 &84 1,424,603 3,631,044 (2,635,843 1,492,282 3,812,086 62,890 3,874,976
Comprehensive income: 2EREF:
Profit for the year FEFE - - - 678,372 678,372 2,803 681,175
Other comprehensive income: Ht2EKE:
Avallable-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - - 6,011 - 6,011 - 6,011
Currency translation differences MEFEER - - (10,996) - (10,996) (202) (11,198)
Total comprehensive income 2ERRAE - - (4,985) 678,372 673,387 2,601 675,988
Transaction with owners: HEBAEAHRE:
Transfer to statutory reserves BRZETEE - - 89,194 (89,194) - - -
Share option scheme BRiEsE
~ proceeds from shares issued ~BIRHAEBRE 10,068 - - - 10,068 - 10,068
- share issuance expenses -ROBETRZ (74) - - - (74) - (74)
Transition to no-par value regime on 7201453 A3HBEZ
3 March 2014 (note 17 (i) ERERMDHIE
(BEEE17()) 3531,044  (3531,044) - - - - -
Contribution by owners relating to BEBREAURNDA
share-based payment (note 18(b)il) ~ EHEX (FEIE B
(B EE18(0)()) - - 11,700 - 11,700 - 11,700
Dividend relating to 2013 013EERE. - - S a8l (42814) N YOX AT
Total transaction with owners HEGAETZREHAE 3,541,088 (3,531,044 100,894 (332,008) (221,120) - (221,120)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31 B 2 &6 4,965,641 - (2,539,934) 1,838,646 4,264,353 65,491 4,329,844

76

Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HZE2015F12A318 IEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

AARREEAEN
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
B Hitvf & REBH B FERER BaRaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT BT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2015 R2015F1 1A 2 &8 4,965,641 (2,539,934) 1,838,646 4,264,353 65,491 4,329,844
Comprehensive income: 2EKE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE/ (BE) - - 525,030 525,030 (2,331) 522,699
Other comprehensive income: ~ Ef2HEKE
Available-for-sale financial assets AELELHEE - 11,704 - 11,704 - 11,704
Currency translation differences INEREER - (261,834) - (261,834) (3,730) (265,564)
Total comprehensive income 2ENGAE - (250,130) 525,030 274,900 (6,061) 268,839
Transaction with owners: HERANETHNRS:
Transfer to statutory reserves BEZETHE (M)
(note 18) - 16,057 (16,057) - - -
Share option scheme (note 17(a)(ii) & A AEET 21 (B =E17(a)(i))
- proceeds from shares issued —BIRMBAEHRE 1,240 - - 1,240 - 1,240
— share issuance expenses ~-BHBITHEZ (23) - - (23) - (23)
Contrioution by owners relatingto AR #EA ARG AR L
share-based payment (note 18() )& Ef (Pt E18(0)) - 16,672 - 16,672 - 16,672
Dividend relating to 2014 (note 30) 20144 R & (Hi230) - - (214,771) (214,771) - (214,771)
Total transaction with owners REEAETZRBAE 1,217 32,729 (230,828) (196,882) - (196,882)
Balance at 31 December 2015 7420155124310 2 & 4,966,858 (2,757,335) 2,132,848 4,342,371 59,430 4,401,801

The notes on pages 79 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F12B31HIEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEEZRE 31(a) 660,338 1,036,712
Interest paid BT F A (15,972) (33,290)
Interest received BEFE 24,137 16,416
Income tax paid BATEH (96,991) (176,854)
Net cash generated from operating activities LR EA 2 RS FEE 571,512 842,984
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEHSRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELEE 7 (266,140) (243,811)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments for AR BE &R EHIE
property, plant and equipment w, (3Em) 14 50,708 (31,108)
Investment income from R ESREE Y
available-for-sale financial assets RERA-EEEER
— wealth management products 24 20,852 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE KB
plant and equipment FiS A 31(b) 19,838 41,293
Development cost F 3 BN 9 (21,061) (16,990)
Proceeds from deferred government grants R S U #6 BG PR AS RRE 20 - 1,262
Dividends received B U B 26,784 19,124
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets BEHEEEMEE
— wealth management products - EEEEM (745,362) -
Net cash used in investing activities KRERSAAZHESFR (914,381) (230,228)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBHZRERE
Proceeds from borrowings B RFTERIE 476,038 934,745
Repayments of borrowings EEER (537,997) (1,229,808)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEBRITEIZORD 2,968 34,356
Dividends paid BATRE (214,771) (242,814)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITEBRATSRIA 17(a) 1,240 10,068
Shares issuance expenses BITRIDFAZ 17(a) (23) (74)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEFHFACREFE (272,545) (493,527)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERALEEY
cash equivalents CR2) /iR (615,414) 119,229
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of ~ F# 2R & NIEEEHEY
the year 1,939,564 1,825,010
Effect on exchange difference EHERZE (87,941) (4,675)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FR 2 HEREELZEY 16 1,236,209 1,939,564

The notes on pages 79 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated &R E79E187H 7 it A4 4 A Bk 2 8/ 56
financial statements. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRATE

2.1

General Information

Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) manufacture, distribute and sell motors
and electronic and electric components for electrical household
appliances in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
overseas.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 3904, 39/F, Tower
6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 14 March 2016.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

2.1

—REH

REEBARAR (AL RAKEAR
(G178 [AEM ) o 3 AR SEAE ([ E)
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o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRATE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity

with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement

in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The

areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@

80

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from employees
or third parties to defined benefit plans. The amendment
distinguishes between contributions that are linked to service
only in the period in which they arise and those linked to
service in more than one period. The amendment allows
contributions that are linked to service, and do not vary with
the length of employee service, to be deducted from the cost
of benefits earned in the period that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service, and vary according
to the length of employee service, must be spread over the
service period using the same attribution method that is
applied to the benefits.

Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRATE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs — 2010
— 2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’, HKAS 16,
‘Property, plant and equipment’ and HKAS 38, ‘Intangible

assets’ and HKAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’.

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs — 2011
— 2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’, HKFRS
13, ‘Fair value measurement’ and HKAS 40,
property’.

‘Investment

The directors of the Company assess that the adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs have no material impact on the
Group’s operating results and financial position.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information

in the consolidated financial statements.

2.1

2141

TESHBREE (&)

mREE ()

BITBERREE2EE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE (&)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued) 211 Bt REREZE 2 EE (F)

©)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted © MARERAEFEIERRRE
New and revised standards, amendments and interpretations D EMER201591 A1 B Bt 2 B E
have been issued and are relevant to the Group but are not Eﬁ'ﬂ*ﬂi@ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁgﬁ MERERS
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2015 and FARFTE] RSB TR EaT A R
have not been early adopted: B

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RUT B8H
ZEFRRZEERRE
£ 3%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BREMISHE LR FE155% [EF &KW 20181 A1H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
TR IS & LR F5R [€@mITA] 20181 A1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of N ER IE AT S LU AT 2 R RAEFT AR
the impact of the above new standards and amendments to HIRBEAMFTE -
existing standards.
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 WEAF
2.2.1 Consolidation 2.21 56tRE
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the MBAREAREEEAIESIE L, B (B1E4
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is %TI:E%@) cEARE I7¥<xﬁ%*ﬁ%?@*‘€%ﬁﬁ
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with Sz Em BEAENEBEHER I IEN
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power HEZERIWE BAREEEGZER B
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which NEEEFIEEREREE 2 BREAHARK
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the WS FIER 7 AREIEEHAR-

date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combination involving entities under common
control

For business combination involving entities under common
control, the consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration
for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s
interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control, where
there is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the previous balance sheet date or when
they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between combining entities or
businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

22 MELQF ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

84

(b)

Business combination other than involving entities under
common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAQE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combination other than involving entities under
common control (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement (note
2.9.1).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

22 MELQF ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)

2.2

(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

2.3

86

Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’'s share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of
the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the income statement.

2.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

24

2.5

(@)

(b)

88

BA RS R AR B RE

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of Renminbi (“RMB”), in view of that the shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2.5

(b)

(©

BA RS R AR B RE

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within “finance expenses-net’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other gains/
(losses)-net .

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or losses.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in the available-
for-sale revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of the
reporting period;

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2.5

(©

2.6

90

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies (Continued)

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

@iy all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are up-front to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land and it is accounted for as an operating
lease. It is stated at cost and charged to the consolidated income
statement over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-line
basis, net of any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:HBEME (&)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment 27 ME - BERRZE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less Y - T I SRR IR 2 AR & R B S
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes BIHER - E A BREWEZSIER EEEN
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or Hep ANMEREZIE B B2 RREER =
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is RATBERAAREE  MZEE 2K AR ] 55
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wil ERN HTeREEE RAENERREL
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. BE (ER) - HEHRE S ZRAESTHHE
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other R A EMHEE RREHFRELE 2 B
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during RN IR IR o
the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the M BERERE 2 ITERANUA T AR AR
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their FHERARESEDBERBREETH:
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Estimated
useful lives
5T A 6 A A

Buildings BF 10-30 yearsF
Furniture, fixtures and decoration R~ BB RS 3-5 years®F
Plant and machinery R M i B8 10-20 years4F
Motor vehicles RE 5-10 yearsfF
Electronic and other equipment B REAMERE 3-5 yearstF

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

BEZNHEERAERFHESERSHR
EITRN REEEREITRHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2.7

2.8

92

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of construction
incurred and machinery pending to installation plus interest
capitalised up to date of completion of the construction of property,
plant and equipment less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until such time the
relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction-in-
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields, and that is not
occupied by the Group, are classified as investment property.
Investment property is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of investment property is calculated using the straight-

line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated lease period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AT

2.9

2.9.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.9.2 Technology

Technology acquired is initially measured at the purchase costs and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.
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2.9

2.9.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2

29

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Research and development

94

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of
gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding,
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities (relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products) is capitalised under the
category of development cost if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible, the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete the development, and if the cost can be reliably
measured. Upon the commencement of the commercial production
of a product, the expenditure on development cost amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit. Research
and development costs comprise costs that are directly attributable
to research and development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities.

Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
completion is recognised as an expense when it is incurred unless
it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate
future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard
of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed
to the asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

Development costs previously recognised as expenses are
not recognised as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised
development costs are amortised from the point at which the assets
are ready for use on a straight-line basis over their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.11Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available
for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

96

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position
(notes 2.16 and 2.17).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other gains when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as ‘gains and losses from

investment securities’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement as part of
other gains. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.13Impairment of financial assets

(@)

98

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAE

2.1

211.2

TESHBREE (&)

THMEE (&)
ERNE ()
A EESFARR R IR B K
HRAHERBEM I - SR A E B

@ TANBRE AR EYWERA B FURER
HETE I - FE R R AR R EL A M s 3B 47

212EEEMTA

EEEREARITRANEHECERSE AUE
BERFRAELE AR EREENESE
BN cREERAGEN SREN XEME
AORKRIRE HFER A TE A I TRN T BERE
RREM AVEBRAEEREHBIZRRN
RARHEFITRL) BT E I ER R G
7o

213 REERE
(@ LABSEMATIRNEE

AEENSEHREARTEEEFETBER
ERAR-CREESIR —SREEELTRK
B -REEFEFBEBRERNARERER
BERBE - FHZREMHMERHIRRE (5
BEE]) MR (REF) BREEEZIAN
ZASBEENGRICREREBKNTE
AR SR AR CREENSREEM
BHBRBERELRERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)

(Continued)

2.13Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)

(Continued)

2.13Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if not, the gain or loss from fair value change is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)
2157 K

2.15Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. GFEEKAR A F IR FERENEREESIER

Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.18 Share capital 2.18 g 7

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.19Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.21 Borrowings Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(@)

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the

basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)
(Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

(i)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

QOutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)

(Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)  Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.23Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits obligation

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.

The Group'’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make contributions
to a state-sponsored defined contribution scheme for the Group’s
local staff on a monthly basis pursuant to laws of the PRC and
relevant regulations issued by local social security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(©

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments
(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the
Group. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)

(Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company’s ultimate holding company of
options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as share-
based payment expenses, with a corresponding credit to equity.

2.25Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.25Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.26 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of associates to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. The fair value
of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero because
all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and the value of
the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums is recognised.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount and the
best estimate of the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is
reported in the consolidated income statement within other operating
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.26 Financial guarantees (Continued)

Where guarantees in relation to loans of the associates are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment in
the financial statements of the Group.

2.27 Revenue recognition

(@)

(b)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Sales of finished goods and raw materials

Sales of finished goods and raw materials are recognised when an
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BEME (&)

(Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(©

(d)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2.28 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.30Dividend distribution

3.1

(@)

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and concentration
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures.

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposes to foreign exchange risks as certain
portion of its business activities are denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily with respect to the HK$, the United States
dollar (‘USD”) and the Euro (“EUR”).

To manage their foreign exchange risks arising from future
commercial transactions, entities in the Group enter into
forward contracts, transacted with the commercial banks. The
directors are of the view that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is manageable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Market risk (Continued)

U)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if the HK$ has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$226,000
lower/higher (2014: HK$116,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains (2014: gains/losses) on
translation of HK$-denominated cash and cash equivalents,
other receivables and other payables.

At 31 December 2015, if the USD has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$18,403,000 (2014: HK$17,468,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
USD-denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2015, if the EUR has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$6,056,000
(2014: HK$4,295,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of EUR-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from short-term
borrowings. All the borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. As at 31
December 2015 and 2014, the Group has no long-term
borrowings.

The Group’s amounts due from/(to) related parties were issued
at interest free, and expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

The directors are of the view that the interest rate risk is not
material as at 31 December 2015.

Price risk

The Group exposes to commodity price risk, mainly due to
the fluctuations in prices of copper and aluminium, which are
key raw materials to the Group’s products. The price risk due
to copper and aluminium is reduced through the derivatives
market and through certain clause in contracts with our
customers to enable the Group to have the flexibility to pass
the increases in raw material costs to the customers.

At 31 December 2015, if the copper and aluminium price had
been 5% higher/lower with other variables held constant, the
post-tax profit for the year would have been of HK$9,211,000
(2014: HK$8,294,000) higher/lower, representing the change in
fair value of copper and aluminium derivatives at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3.1

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits,
derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale financial assets, due
from related parties and trade and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, derivative
financial instruments and available-for-sale financial assets,
management manages the credit risk by transacting with state-
owned financial institutions and reputable commercial banks. The
maximum exposure to the credit risk before collateral held or other
credit enhancements relating to cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale
financial assets, were their carrying value as disclosed in note 16,
note 15, note 22 and note 12, respectively, as at 31 December 2015
and 2014.

For trade and other receivables and due from related parties, the
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit quality.
Given the constant repayment history, the directors are of the view
that the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

3

3.1

(b)

MERREE ()
HBEBEE (F)
EEAR

AEBYESEETZEERR- - FERRK
BRENELEEY CEBRTER T4
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AR E 5 K Ho At U

TR EREEEY BEPRITFER ITE
eMIARAHEESMEEIR BREE
MU B RMEEREBR T 2 FEIRITHE
IRGREREERK - FERBAIFHEEA
mA HERS RN EEY CHEMRITE
FoTESRMIARAHIEESRMEEHERELY
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15 - M FE22 K M S 1260 BRTEI A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERKRER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEREZE (&)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERRK (&)
For financial guarantees provided for the associate, the Group RSB B S QARIRENREER A%
monitors the credit quality of the associate by taking into account BE BRSSO R ER RS
their financial position and business development plan. As at 31 EUEEHEEEE R -R2015512A310 - &
December 2015, the directors are of the view that the risk of default ERAHEE N TH R KA RS & o FTE R
by the associate is low. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the M= EERRE AR IERLREE KT
balance of the borrowings before accounting for collaterals held of WEMARRZBRERIFTIOT -

other credit enhancements as follows.

2015 2014
Face value Face value
HE [ERE]
Financial guarantees BhE R
— bank loans drawn (note 34) —BRERITE R (H5E34) 179,045 423,374
(c) Liquidity risk () RBEZRAR
Liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash NBECREBREEBEHBTERSER K
balance, the availability of funding from an adequate amount ESMNEEREBEEENENES MRETS
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market [2\Bg 2 B
positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXEKRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEREZE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () RBESLEAMR (&)

TROMAKRERREHREG OB
THRZRABIBERNN B ZTESREE
RFEGEESRITEMBREFE - RPAEE
ZEBRDEHIRBRRERE

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and net-settled financial derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Over
1year 1 and 2 years 2 years
1ETF 15228 2F Bk
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT
At 31 December 2015 R201512H31H
Borrowings EEN 20,731 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMEN R 2,989,166 - -
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMmIT A 7,751 - -
Principal amount of financial guarantees REERAE
— bank loans drawn —BREURITE R 179,045 - -
At 31 December 2014 H2014%12H31H
Borrowings &% 88,325 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAEMNK 3,416,942 - -
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 16,601 - -
Principal amount of financial guarantees BERERETE
— bank loans drawn —BRERITERK 423,374 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Capital management

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Group’s strategy for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was to maintain a gearing ratio under
75% or had a net cash position. This ratio was calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. As the Group
was in a net cash position as at 31 December 2015 and 2014,

gearing ratio was not applicable.

3

3.2

MHEREER (F)
EXEHE

AREZERER AR RRERREREL
BN ARBERE R - B FREEM
BHEBEAZNE W REZERERBA
I E AL

REFSABRENGE  ARE A BEHITHAR
R EEENREET

HBERNEMAR K AEEFRELAEL
RERH BN AREBERE2015F12H31H 1k
FEORBARFERNG B EENR75%IE
EFH A o bbb RIZRETEFRERR A RS
MR E - BIEFHEEREREEREACERR
THEZNBESRReEEYTE -ARAEE
#2015 K%20146F12 A31 AR F R AR -
EABELELTEA -

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash and cash equivalents (note 16) ReEkBSEEY (WiE16) 1,236,209 1,939,564
Pledged bank deposits BHMFIEITER 76,960 79,928

Less: Total borrowings (note 23) B (B ARRE (K #E23) (20,650) ®87,731)
Net cash ReFHE 1,292,519 1,931,761
Total equity R 4,401,801 4,329,844
Gearing ratio (%) BXRBELE(%) N/ATE A N/AA~ 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERKRER (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 DAEEME

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by TRERBEES L DWRARLEBEARZ

valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows: SRIT R - TRSHTEMT:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical HREERBEZ/ERMS®RE (KK
assets or liabilities (level 1). HE) (B—)-

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are BEREEE R ZREN EEREE
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as Z A EREE (AER)kEE (BRE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). EBRE)MASIE (E24)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable WIFRBAIBRMISERMETCEAE
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). BBz AR (ATTEE2HA

HiE) (B=4) -
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities TREFNAEEN2015F12A31BIZAREE
that are measured at fair value as at 31 December 2015. rECEREERAE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B EZH E=® Fohy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BEAAREEFEEHES
through profit or loss FFABRZEREE

Derivative financial instruments TESMIA

— Commodity futures contracts —HEERAY 7,963 - - 7,963

— Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —9MERHIA 47 - 1,286 - 1,286

Available-for-sale financial assets T #HELREE

— Wealth management products ~-HEEEBEMR - 720,857 - 720,857

— Equity investments —RERE - - 120,306 120,306
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERKRER (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DAEEME (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R B E= et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Liabilities =N
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAAEEFEEHES
through profit or loss STABRGBCERARE
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEmIA
— Commodity futures contracts —~-HEBRAY 1,688 - - 1,688
— Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —YMEERHIA 4 - 6,063 - 6,063
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TREINAREBP2014F12 A31 HIR A BE
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014. AECEREEREBE-.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 FM F=H Mt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T AT T AT T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BRAREEFEEESZS
through profit or loss FTABBECEREE
Derivatives financial instruments TEeRIA
— Commodity futures contracts —HEERALN 116 - - 116
— Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —9MERHIA 47 - 25,859 - 25,859
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESHEE
— Equity investments —RERE - - 118,678 118,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

3.3

(@)

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERKRER (&)
Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEME (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—3 F_M Y Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT T BT
Liabilities &1
Financial liabilities at fair value BEOAEEFEEEES
through profit or loss ARG ERARE
Derivative financial instruments THESRIA
— Commodity futures contracts —HERRAL 6,731 - - 6,731
— Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —SMER A4 - 9,870 - 9,870

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

Financial instruments in level 1 (@)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise commodity futures
contracts.

Financial instruments in level 2 (b)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, foreign exchange forward contracts)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

FR-E—REE_HHTEBEER -
E-RETMIA

EERMIZEBEZ 2RI A AREE BIR
ERE METER 2 TS RERRELE W
WERRER LA EHRRZZTE K58 &
i EXSE BRRGHENEEREES
WHAZFERAREE BRAVFEEZERD
55 RIS HRIE AR RM S  AEER
BZemMEEMRAZTERE/EFEAE-
HRETREMAE R -BRAE—HR2IA
BEHEEMEL -

E-RERMTA

WIERRTIHER 2 2R T A (PlansER
HEH) 2o EE AIMAGERNEE - %
EEERMERNRSZAIBRTSHE #
BERDHERBEEM 2KBIZE - Wiz
ARBEME-BIAZAEERBARIEY
AERES AZETAEMAE — K-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXEKRERE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued)

3.3 RABEEME (&)

(b) FEZHZKEHMTE ()

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable i — Bk Z [ E ARG A BRI IERIB TR T

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

SHBET ZBETEERAE =4

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined INERHEIGH 2 ARBENEREERZES
using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the EXET EEZEEREDRE-

resulting value discounted back to present value.

(¢) Financial instruments in level 3

() HE=#smIA

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for T&REHNEZ2014F K2015F 12 431 B L F/E

the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015:

E=MIAZ2H:

Available-for-sale
financial assets

AHHESREE

HK$'000

BT T
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1H 111,959
Net gains transferred to equity FW R E R E S 7,071
Currency translation differences INEETH =R (352)
At 31 December 2014 R20145F12/31H 118,678
At 1 January 2015 7201591 A1H 118,678
Net gains transferred to equity FREE RS 8,900
Currency translation differences SNEE YT B =R (7,272)
At 31 December 2015 2015912 A31H 120,306
If the fair value of equity investments would be shifted by 10%, the IR E 2 A A BEERE10%  AEHERE
impact on the net gains transferred to equity would be HK$890,000. T 2 R W E 52 B S 2 15890,0007T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

4.1

(@)

BA RS R AR AL

Critical Accounting Estimates And
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2.9.1. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of certain key assumptions (note 9). Changing in such
key assumptions selected by management, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash
flows for the CGU of GD Welling and Changzhou Welling had been
5% and 2% higher than management’s estimates respectively, the
recoverable amount of goodwill would be lower than its carrying
amount and impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

If the estimated gross margin of the CGU of GD Welling and
Changzhou Welling had been 2% and 1% lower than management’s
estimates respectively, the recoverable amount of goodwill would be
lower than its carrying amount and impairment of goodwill would be
recognised.

4.1

(@)

EEgHEET R A

it R AE 2 SHE & NENETT - I BRIRBE
KRR EAMREERER  Hh SRRy
AREMZAIETEH -

EEERAFRER

AEBMEARAAEL AT RBE T2 g5t
ARBEREE LSRR BENERER A8
EXRBRASHEENARREERT—E
MIRFREF HREAREZ R RERRMm
To

R E R R

REBEGFLRIRHIT2.9.1 P72 5T BEORH
HEEABEMRE - ReELEN 2 ATKE
SRRERBEAEMETE ZFHHARS
ETEIEMR (M) - WEREREHEZ
IT2RFK (BREERFHERERR) - BAY
WERHFERFREBRKEATE -

HEANERREREMNHER S EE B
BIREMEBZ EETHATRR R BB E I E T
Rt &I IN5% K 2% @ F B AT EHE KR E
fREE - BREIRER T IARER -

HERREREMNBERSEEBL 2 AHE
FERREBREMMGED IR D2%KE1% &
Er R EE S ER HREE  AEREST
L\/{EE%//L\D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

4.1

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Critical Accounting Estimates And
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

If the growth rate of the CGU of GD Welling and Changzhou
Welling had been 5% and 2% lower than management’s estimates
respectively, the recoverable amount of goodwill would be lower than
its carrying amount and impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select
a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
The Group has used discounted cash flow analysis for various
foreign exchange forward contracts and available-for-sale wealth
management products that are not traded in active markets.

Impairment of available-for-sale equity investment

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an
available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the investee, including
factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

4.1

(e)

()

Critical Accounting Estimates And
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Useful lives adopted for the calculation of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

The estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment was
made by the management with reference to the established industry
practices, technical assessments made on the durability of the
assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair and
maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in responses to severe industry cycles.

If the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
had been higher/lower by 10% from management’s estimates,
the depreciation charge would have decreased/increased by
HK$17,156,000 and HK$20,968,000 (2014: HK$13,657,000 and
HK$16,692,000) respectively.

Provision for impairment of inventories

Provision for impairment of inventories is based on the net realisable
value which is the selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses. The calculation of the net
realisable value is determined based on management’s estimates of
the selling price and variable selling expenses according to prevailing
market conditions.

The amount of impairment of inventories included in the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2015 is HK$874,000
(2014: reversal of HK$4,762,000).

4.1

(e)

EEgsH AT RAE (&)

EESTHEF RER (#)

AEME BERRBINERANAER
£ 5

WE - -BELRREBNAEAFHHEEESR
BEETTRIED] - BRAEEM B IR BRI -
AEEBEREENEERREFSMEERRE
SAETTIAET o BRI BE & AR NIRRT S i
FHFRBRRNOTEADRRTPMBELEA
HEeo

WEWE - BERBEGTAERAFHRRER
EFTEETEM, A 10%  FTERX G H BIRL
/¥4 07 #517,156,0007T & 74 #£20,968,00070
(20144F : 7% #13,657,0007T & 7 #16,692,000
TT) e

FERERE

FEREREETERFELE TAISRF
R BHEBR PO EERER T 2 HE
S o 5 W SRR ER R E R TR E
BB S E RS S AT A
i

HZE2015F12A31 A L FE 2 WERATHTE
SBE S 5 BB 874,0007T (20144 « @B
4,762,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

4.1

(9)

Critical Accounting Estimates And
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective evidence
of impairment. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, the
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or
significant delay in payments are considered as objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating
that there has been a significant change in the payment ability of
the debtor, or whether there have been significant changes with
adverse effect on the market and economic environment in which the
debtor operates in. Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an impairment loss
should be recorded as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is HK$54,218,000 (2014:
HK$48,111,000).

Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing,
distribution and selling of motors and electronic and electric
components for electrical household appliances in the PRC and

overseas.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, the board of directors, who
is responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance
of the operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
management considers the business from both business and
geographical perspectives. From business perspective, the Group
has only one business segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from
customers located in the PRC and outside PRC are presented as
follows:

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 oHIER (&)

REBRNAT B - RNEB K B B BEIRA RFEIN
B ZWAZSIIT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BEEF T

Revenue from customers in the PRC REFBIREARE ZWA 5,606,554 6,359,667
Revenue from customers outside the PRC RERBBEINEE Z WA 2,433,812 2,913,732
8,040,366 9,273,399

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which customers are
located. No revenue derived from a single external customer has
exceeded 10% of the total revenue.

No geographical segment analysis on non-current assets is prepared
as substantially all of the Group’s assets were located in the PRC.

Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

WAREEFATEBZR DB - R A B —S)
BEPE AL EIEAI0%A L -

AEBBABHEERMNSE > B ERIE
RBEEZWES BN -
HE TRt AR

REBPRHEE T N fE At 2 R R TAN
KEHEEFE RRIFEOMAT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT T

Opening net book amount FYREFE 215,212 221,288
Amortisation charge B X (5,213) (5,295)
Currency translation differences INEEIT B =5 (12,353) (781)
Closing net book amount FRE®FE 197,646 215,212

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, no leasehold land and land use
rights have been pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities
(note 23).

20159 K2014F12 A31 B - LM E L i
o T3 (F FAREVE AR BERTTIRE 2348 (I
£03) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

7 Property, Plant and Equipment 7 ME-BERRE

Furniture, Electronic
fixtures and Plant and Motor and other Construction-
Buildings  decoration  machinery vehicles  equipment  in-progress Total
B ETR
BT REREE BERES RE HtRE W ERIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  A¥Tr  BETr A%Tr BT BT AT
At 1 January 2014 1h2014F1 A18
Cost KA 434,090 62,080 1,179,918 25,661 119,944 120,748 1,944,441
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (139.462) (42602 (448008  (14771)  (87254) - (132187)
Net book amount REFE 294,628 19,478 731,820 10,890 32,690 122748 1,212,254
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE2014F 12318 ILFE
Opening net book amount EERFE 294,628 19,478 731,820 10,890 32,690 122,748 1,212,254
Additions HE 34,116 1,022 84,034 4,527 23,338 9,774 243,811
Currency translation differences NEREZE (1,199) (74) (1,117) &) (1,898) (565) (4,851)
Disposals HE @87 (8,207) (25,762) (819) (8,223 (16,764) (54,308)
Transfers 3 91,555 - 13,682 - 6,052 (111,289) -
Depreciation ik (23,782) (1,171) (103,928) (4,061) (17,285) - (150,227
Closing net book amount FREEZE 395,281 11,048 698,729 11,038 39,679 90,904 1,246,679
At 31 December 2014 R2014512318
Cost AR 557,916 30,536 1,198,633 28,218 132,686 90,904 2,088,893
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (162,635) (19,488) (499,904) (17,180) (93,007) - (792,214)
Net book amount REFE 395,281 11,048 698,729 11,038 39,679 90,904 1,246,679
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE015F12A31BILEE
Opening net book amount FUREZE 395,281 11,048 698,729 11,038 39,679 90,904 1,246,679
Additions hE 3,538 30,412 155,342 1,291 52,113 23,444 266,140
Currency translation differences NEHEER (21,958) (407) (35,527) (500) (1,651) (5,308) (65,346)
Disposals HE (3,095) (11,193) (46,585) (940) (2,425) (471) (64,709)
Transfers EEp] 3,755 433 76,059 - 5,995 (86,242) -
Depreciation ik (28,198) (6,065) (121,354) (3,663) (29,432) - (188,712)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 349,323 24,228 726,664 7,226 64,279 22332 1,194,052
At 31 December 2015 120158124318
Cost KA 529,512 48,184 1,212,668 23,932 169,422 22332 2,006,050
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (180,189) (23,956) (486,004) (16,706) (105,143) - (811,998)
Net book amount REFE 349,323 24,228 726,664 7,226 64,279 22332 1,194,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 7 Y% BERRE (&)
Depreciation charge of HK$172,453,000 (2014: HK$134,968,000) EIER P - B #172,453,0007T (20144 :
has been charged to cost of goods sold, HK$606,000 (2014: 75 #134,968,0007T) B AT ASHE & A A - B
HK$207,000) to selling and marketing expenses, HK$5,384,000 #£606,0007T (20144F : 73 #5207,0007T) B 5F A
(2014: HK$13,674,000) to administrative expenses and & K T 45 1 JE A <2 - B %65,384,0007T (2014
HK$10,269,000 (2014: HK$1,378,000) in research and development F 118,674,000 ) B AT RITERFA X - A K
costs. 75 #510,269,0007T (20144F : 7 #1,378,0007T )
BT AT MR
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, construction-in-progress mainly 2015 K2014F12 AB1BEMERTIEEER
comprises new manufacturing equipment being constructed. FRIE R s aliE sk
Investment Properties 8 KREWHE
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT T
Opening net book amount FYREFE 52,435 55,582
Depreciation e (2,898) (2,944)
Currency translation differences INEEIT B =R (2,946) (203)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 46,591 52,435
Cost %N 58,624 62,256
Accumulated depreciation R2FITE (12,033) (9,821)
Net book amount ERTENFE 46,591 52,435

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2015 was HK$51,951,000, as estimated by the directors
of the Group. It falls under level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. No
valuation has been performed by independent qualified professional
valuers.

The rental income of the investment property in 2015 was
HK$4,348,000 (2014: HK$4,417,000).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance.

KAREBEZ R RERREYMEN2015F
12A31B 8 A R EE A 151,951,0007T &
RARBEEENE =R BB IABIRHE
[ ERMENT T Ik (E -

2015F IR A M E TS WA BB ¥E4,348,0007T
(20144 : B #4,417,0007T ) °

20154 F2014F12 A31 B » REE 5t AR K&
B RS ERBENE RES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

8 Investment Properties (Continued) 8 REWE(E)
(a) Leasing arrangements (a) HEZH
Investment properties have been leased to tenants under long-term KEMEDZBRPCERERBFARAA
operating leases with rentals payable quarterly. HEREEHM -
Minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases of RIBET A RS EHER RNV SRR ERD
investment properties not recognised in the financial statements are KREMENERSEHSSBOT
as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Not later than one year THE—F 1,812 4,417
Later than one year and not later than five years ~ #Bi8 —FETHBBHE - 1,840
1,812 6,257
The investment properties of the Group is situated in the PRC. REERREMERRFRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M mRME
9 Intangible Assets 9 BFEE
Development
Goodwill  Technology cost Total
[k Bl B A A =i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T BB T
At 1 January 2014 R2014%181A8
Cost DN 30,030 31,905 38,179 100,114
Accumulated amortisation ESE 3= - (7,179 - (7,179)
Net book amount RESE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F12A31HIEFE
Opening net book amount FEREFEE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
Additions NE - - 16,990 16,990
Amortisation charge and BEAY RAEER
impairment charge - (3,166) (37,880) (41,046)
Currency translation differences INEITE E 5 (103) (98) (229) (424)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 29,927 21,462 17,066 68,455
At 31 December 2014 2014 12A31H
Cost DN 29,927 31,795 17,066 78,788
Accumulated amortisation RET#H - (10,333) - (10,333)
Net book amount BREFE 29,927 21,462 17,066 68,455
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F12A31HIEFE
Opening net book amount FHIREFE 29,927 21,462 17,066 68,455
Additions NE - - 21,061 21,061
Amortisation charge B - (3,116) (1,299) (4,415)
Currency translation differences INEFE EEE (1,746) (1,131) (1,769) (4,646)
Closing net book amount FRERmFE 28,181 17,215 35,059 80,455
At 31 December 2015 A2015F12A31H
Cost AR 28,181 29,940 36,358 94,479
Accumulated amortisation RETHH - (12,725) (1,299) (14,024)
Net book amount RESE 28,181 17,215 35,059 80,455
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

9 Intangible Assets (Continued)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise upon
the Group’s acquisition of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) of
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (‘GD Welling”)
and Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou
Welling”) located in the PRC from the third parties. A summary of the
goodwill allocation is presented as follows:

BREE (&)

REBRE =TT WRLN P B E R EER
SUEARAR ([EREAE]) REMNBEER
HEBRAR([BMBEDNRSEEEN
(FREEEEM]) B SELBRME Mk
RN EHREE - mEN B2 :

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

GD Welling ERRE 23,551 25,010
Changzhou Welling BMEE 4,630 4,917
28,181 29,927

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

9 Intangible Assets (Continued) 9

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

BREE (&)

ERABEAEZIERERMT

follows:
Changzhou
GD Welling Welling
BREBE EMNRE
As at 31 December 2015 ®2015%12H31H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) ERE(FBEEMEK) 12% 13%
Volume growth rate HEMRE 7% 10%
Long term growth rate RAEPG R = 1% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to ARR (ARBReREEANZ
the cash flow projections) FRATALIA =) 13% 13%
As at 31 December 2014 2014512 A431H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) FEME (FBEER =) 12% 13%
Volume growth rate HEERE 15% 15%
Long term growth rate REERE 1% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to AR R (ARBReREEANZ
the cash flow projections) TRATALIR &) 15% 15%

Management determined the compound annual volume growth rate
for each CGU covering over the five-year forecast period to be a key
assumption. The volume of sales in each period is the main driver
for revenue and costs. The compound annual volume growth rate is
based on past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. The long term growth rates used are consistent
with the forecasting’s included in industry report. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the Group. No
impairment is considered necessary based on the assessment.

EEE/ESEReELSMERFRANNE
AFHEEREHES —HIEEER -SEH
BHHEETRRANKAN T ZRR A
FHEERFIENBERANEREHMS
BROEH - EANRBERRETERS
MR FEORIAR — 2 - P A O RA3R 15 R T AT RS
IR R f Bk B AN 6% [ A R 0 R TE LR < AT AR R
NERERERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

10 Subsidiaries 10 B A A

TR AEER2015F12831H 2K B A A
HEo-MAZEZEVNB AR (R EEME
22) BAMHEARER ZHBHE-

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group as at 31 December 2015. All of these are controlled
subsidiaries as defined under note 2.2 and have been consolidated
into the Group’s financial statements.

Place of incorporation
and operation/
establishment and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital Interest held
EMRIREE/ BRTRE/
L RYtHREEERERN TEER AMEEZFHE Fi s
Directly held:
EERE:
Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
limited liability company USD1 each
REZERBVERAF RBRUES REEK 10,000 BRAEIETZ
BREMERAT EER
Indirectly held:
MERsE:
Changzhou Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 75.97%
company motors RMB40,622,545
BMARERSHRBERAA mE BREEATE HWEREES HMER
AR#40,622,5457T
Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 75.97%
Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Weling") company (sino-foreign motors USD23,634,600
equity joint venture
enterprise)
EMBESHUEBRAR ([FMEE]) HE AREEAT HWEREEEH & 423,634,600 T
(PHaERE)
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. company (sino-foreign motors USD15,000,000
equity joint venture
enterprise)
BUTHESTFERERAA HE AREEAF WEREESH #tfl & 715,000,000 7T
(RNEELE)
Foshan Welling Material Supply Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability Trading of raw materials Registered capital 100%
company RMB20,000,000
LT EHEM R ERRAF HE AREEAT BEERMH AR
AR #20,000,0007T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. ("Welling Washer”) company (sino-foreign motors USD6,400,000
equity joint venture
enterprise)
BLTRBEARERREERAR HE AREEAF WEREESH 7t & 776,400,000 7T
(TR E M) (RNEELE)
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. ("GD Welling") company (foreign motors USD48,810,000
investment enterprises)
ERAEERMEERAR ([BERAE]) HE AREEAF HEREEEHR #Hfl 4 448,810,000 7T

(SMERE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

10 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation
and operation/
establishment and

10 B R (&)

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital Interest held
AMRIKEE/ BRITRE/
a8 HuERiEEREN TEXH AMERZFE iiEsy 5
Hefei Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability Investment holding Registered capital 100%
company RMB50,000,000
BERBESHRAERRAA RE BREEATF BEZR AMER
AR %50,000,0007T
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
(*Huaian Welling") company (sino-foreign motors USD45,000,000
equity joint venture
enterprise)
EZBBEESRUEFTRAA (DEREE]) hE BREEAE BEREESH il & 845,000,000 7T
(RNEERE)
Midea Welling Motor Technology (Shanghai) PRC, limited liability Providing technical Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. company consultancy services RMB10,000,000
ENEEERRM (LE)BRAF HE BREERNA RS R RS ERIEEN
AE#%10,000,0007C
Weling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited Investment holding and 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
liability company trading of motors
HEEREBERAA BB BREARA REBKREES 10,000,0008% & @
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. ("Wuhu Weling") company (sino-foreign motors USD17,680,000
equity joint venture
enterprise)
HE (BN EREERAF ([RARE]) HE BRELAA HEREESH & 717,680,000 T
(RNEERE)
Wuhu Welling Motor Sales Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability Trading of motors Registered capital 100%
company RMB50,000,000
BHEBEESRHEEERAA mE BREEATF EREH AMAER
AR #50,000,0007%
Weling Macao Commercial Offshore Limited” Macao Special Offshore trading Registered capital Macao 100%
Administrative Region, Pataca 100,000
limited liability company
HERFBEEERBERAR" RPIRRITHE BERS & 2RI %100,0007T

BREFRAR

*

The company was deregistered during the year. *REIRERE-
REFSHREFMME T ARMNEXAIBAEIRE
REEP X AHBENS 2S5/ RWESR
EROERE S ETET

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial
statements represent management’s best effort at translating the
Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been
registered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

10 Subsidiaries (Continued)
(@) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2015
is HK$59,430,000 (2014: HK$65,491,000), which are all
attributed to Changzhou Welling Group, which included
Changzhou Welling and its subsidiary Changzhou Honglu
Huate Electric Co., Ltd.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
Changzhou Welling Group.

Summarised balance sheet

10 B AT (&)
(@) EXRFERES
PR2015FE12 A31 B IEHEREZE A
H 54 #550,430,0007T, (20144 - 75 #E
65,491,0007T) * 2B REEMBEE
B (AEMNEERENE RG] EMIARE
ERTERERARAENK)

BERERGFERESNME QR
BEANER

AT HGREMN A BEERE 2 IS EREE

EEREREE

Changzhou Welling Group

EMNBREE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current mE
Assets BE 101,272 216,858
Liabilities =k (134,574) (244,315)
Total current net liabilities MEN B EF AT (33,302 (27,457)
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 223,612 242 277
Liabilities aE (4,339) (5,400)
Total non-current net assets ERBE EFEA 219,273 236,877
Net assets BEFE 185,971 209,420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M mRME
10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 B 7E (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (@) EARFEHRER (E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with BEEBARFERERNKME R SMNE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BERBE (F)
Summarised income statement WK RBE
Changzhou Welling Group
EMRBE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue WA 300,606 365,807
(Loss)/profit before income tax MR FrSE AT (E18),/FH (12,684) 1,990
Income tax income Fris iU A 2,492 7,311
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BE)/FH (10,192) 9,301
(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to DB T IEERERNFER
non-controlling interests (BE),/FH (2,331) 2,803
Other comprehensive loss allocated to DT IEIERR R B
non-controlling interests HihzmEE (3,730) (202)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income DB T IEERERNEE
allocated to non-controlling interests (B518) W 4ast (6,061) 2,601
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e R

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 B 7E (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (@) EARFEHRER (E)
(Continued)
BEEBARFERERNKME R SMNE

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with

material non-controlling interests (Continued) BERBE (F)
Summarised cash flows HeREME

Changzhou Welling Group

EMRBE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities KETHHRENRE
Cash generated from operations CEEEZERS 21,431 33,195
Income tax paid BAATEH (827) (2,280)
Net cash generated from KEEHEECREFE
operating activities 20,604 30,915
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBAZE®FR (13,490) (45,594)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & EENE L 2 IR & F58 5,938 10,682
Net increase/(decrease) in ReERBRSEEMIL M CRhd)
cash and cash equivalents R 13,052 (3,997)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank FYzEe HeZFEMR
overdrafts at beginning of year RITEX 4,595 8,639
Effect on exchange difference EHERTE (779) (47)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZHENIMELEEY 16,868 4,595

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

11

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity
Method

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

11 UERZEARZKRE

BEBBRNBRASTENT:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Associates B 8 N &) 345,897 328,918
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows: WmRAERSENT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Associates B 222 ) 51,396 41,253

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2015, which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. The associates as listed below are all unlisted, and held
directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business.

Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December 2015 and
2014:

REBR2015F12A31BE T HBE R B
REFRAREAEEEERTENRQR - 15
BERRYRIFLTRARALHAEEERS
B HEMKRIBRRBRERTEETES
2 P

2015 201412 A31 B 2 B¢ & N alie &1t
&

Place of business/ % of

country of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest relationship method

E %1 HEEES
ERER MR ER Botk BRERERBEM TEFE
Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co.,Ltd. PRC 49 Note (a) Equity

(“Shanxi Huaxiang”)

IWFEEAEBER AT ([WWAEMN]) A X M 5E () A
Linkgo-HK Limited (“Linkgo”) Hong Kong 49 Note (b) Equity
BEREMFAAERDET ([HAT]) B M55 (b) A
(a) Shanxi Huaxiang’s principal activities are manufacturing and selling precise casting (@ IR ENN T B K 28NS RIEE LR RKE RS

used for the compressor of air-conditioners and refrigerators. Shanxi Huaxiang is a
private company and there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

(b) Linkgo's principal activities are investment holding. Linkgo is a private company
and there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

BOBERE LRERR—BARARE HRH

W AT B

M E EEBRICE R - MR —MRARE

H [ An WA 5 0 (E

Annual Report 2015 ] 39



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RR AT

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 MEZZARZKRE (F)
Method (Continued)

Summarised financial information for associates e A RN B EREE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Shanxi TR AR A ABR A LU 75 2 53 K ] 9 B 75
Huaxiang and Linkgo which are accounted for using the equity BRE -
method.
Summarised balance sheet EEEERYE

Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total

WFEER A mit
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETR BT BETR BT

Current ok
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEN 310,639 304,266 - - 310,639 304,266
Other current assets (excluding cash) EtEBHEE (TaERE) 782,667 881,717 - - 782,667 881,717
Total current assets BRYEE 1,093,306 1,185,983 - - 1,093,306 1,185,983
Financial liabilities LRER

(excluding trade payables) (TREEIRER) (598,274) (728,895) (23) (23) (598,297) (728,918)
Other current liabilities HRBEE

(including trade payables) (BEESRNEH) (476,150) (555,975) (210) (181) (476,360) (556,156)
Total current liabilities BryatE (1,074,424)  (1,284,870) (233) (204)  (1,074,657)  (1,285,074)
Non-current k|
Assets BE 800,218 850,268 31,940 36,089 832,158 886,357
Financial liabilties tHERE (91,671) (44,746) - - (91,671) (44,746)
Other liabilties HEiafE (20,190) (9,896) - - (20,190) (9,896)
Total non-current liabilties BERYEE (111,861) (54,642) - - (111,861) (54,642)
Net assets BERFE 707,239 696,739 31,707 35,885 738,946 732,624
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RR AT

11

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity

Method (Continued)

11 DRERZEARZRE (8&)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EKREREE

Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total

LBEED WA @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT
Revenue WA 1,480,331 1532972 - 15773 1,480,331 1,548,745
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (88,376) (82,438) - - (88,376) (82,438)
Interest income FIEMWA 5,851 5,150 - - 5,851 5,150
Interest expense HERX (42,245) (47,156) - - (42,245) (47,156)
Profit before income tax N FEHARE 128,061 108,478 (4,178) 7,544 123,883 116,022
Income tax expense FERAZ (20,955) (20,090) - - (20,955) (20,090)
Profit for the year EEFR 107,106 88,388 (4,178) 7,544 102,928 95,932
Dividends received from associate  EI%& A FIHMK S 13,752 - - 7,729 13,752 7,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 MEZZARZKRE (E)
Method (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial BRERBENHERSR
information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to Fr25IME % ER B E HE & A R REE
the carrying amount of its interest in associates: B ¥R 5K
Summarised financial information B ERRE

Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total

LBEED WA @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
BETT  EMTRT  BETR  EBTT E®TR E%TR

Opening net assets 1 January 1R1AZENEERE 696,739 625,213 35,885 44,114 732,624 669,327
Profit for the year ENFE 107,106 88,388 4,178) 7,544 102,928 95,932
Dividend paid BRKE (28,065) - - (15,779) (28,065) (15,773)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest It ER FE AR 2 (25,806) - - - (25,806) -
Currency translation differences NEREESR (42,735) (16,862) - - (42,735) (16,862)
Closing net assets FREEFE 707,239 696,739 31,707 35,885 738,946 732,624
Non-controling interests FERER (70,902) (108,760) - - (70,902) (108,760)
Closing net assets attributable to ~ HEABEEREEFE

the owners 636,337 592,979 31,707 35,885 668,044 628,864
Interest in associates (49%, 49%) B 1\ R (49% - 49% ) 311,805 290,560 15,536 17,583 327,34 308,143
Falr value adjustments NI ES 1,163 1,141 18,281 18,272 19,444 19,413
Currency translation differences INEFTEZE (1,381) (1,283) 493 2,645 (888) 1,362
Carrying value FEE 311,587 290,418 34,310 38,500 345,807 328918
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e R

12 Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

12 JREESHEE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Non-current FERE
Equity investment, at fair value (a) IR E LA EBEE @) 120,306 118,678
Current TE
Investment in wealth management products, R EEREMNIRE
at fair value (b) IARBEED) 720,857 -
841,163 118,678
(@)  Non-current available-for-sale financial assets represent the @ ERPAHEEeMEEEIELTAR

equity interests in an unlisted company, Midea Group Finance
Co., Ltd (the “Finance Company”), which shall provide a
range of financial services as approved by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission. The registered capital of the Finance
Company was RMB1,500 million while GD Welling held 5%
equity interest in it. The Group has no significant influence on
the Finance Company.

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets was
determined by the directors. A gain arising from the fair value
change amounting to HK$8,900,000 (2014: HK$7,071,000)
was recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The directors assessed the fair
value of the equity investment and are in the opinion that the
fair value of the Finance Company approximately its net assets
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Current available-for-sale financial assets represent the wealth
management products issued by banks with expected
investment return rates ranging from 5.2% to 5.9% per annum
in the PRC. The principals and returns are not guaranteed.
A gain arising from the fair value change amounting
to HK$4,869,000 (2014: Nil) was recognised in other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The fair value of the wealth management products approximate
to their costs plus expected investment return.

ENEEMBERAR ([MHBARE
Pk M A RIEHBIRITREBEIE
ZESHETRESEBSRRE  H]
MEASARKISET BERAERH
HB%H I - AR EH AR AL EE
REET

AHEESRHEENAAEERES
8,900,0007T (20144 : & #7,071,0007T)
REZE2015F12A31H IEFERNE M2
E R - EETIZREREN AR
BB - WiR A2 B R2015%F 2014
F12A3MHBZ AN BEEEEEFEM
go

TENRTE R E A ERBRITETHN
MEEEEM BHRTBENEGFHRE
1R & 1) T-5.2%25.9% ° A& K& B3 A&
FRF-AABEEHEENHWZBE
4,869,0007T (20144 : 4 ) A H, £2015
F12A31 A - FE R H ftb 2 Uk a8 A AE
R-PEEEERZANBEEELAR
In_EFEEAR & B REEE -

Annual Report 2015 F ] 43



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

13 Inventories 13 #E&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T T T
Raw materials R # 88,805 184,832
Work-in-progress &M 13,563 21,473
Finished goods (Note) Sk (FI5E) 452,570 785,641
554,938 991,946
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included FE KA #5,018,722,0007T (20144 :
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$5,918,722,000 (2014: 6,886,297,0007T) E MR AR Wit ASHEE
HK$6,886,297,000). N
Note: As at 31 December 2015, the Group had finished goods which were delivered MizE: R2016F12A318 AL BN RERERF i

and kept in stores at customers’ location amounting to approximately
HK$172,657,000 (2014: HK$251,401,000). No sales have been recognised
for these finished goods as the risks and rewards have not been passed to the

Bh H) BLAK G 4978 #172,657,0007T (20144 : B 1
251,401,0007T) - AR AR R B BMAH IR THF
W% SRRk G B I R ERER

customers.
14 Trade and Other Receivables 14 ESREMBUHRR

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables (note (a)) B SR (@) 1,017,813 1,278,733
Less: allowance for impairment (note (c)) OB ERE (M) (54,218) 48,111)
Trade receivables-net B 5 RN — 963,595 1,230,622

Amounts due from related parties JrE W Ba B 5 k1B
(notes (a), 35(b)) (BizE(a) - 35(0)) 1,301,080 764,470
Notes receivable (notes (a),(d)) JEW IR (FI5E(R) ~ (d)) 550,651 699,385
2,815,326 2,694,477
Prepayments AR 83,899 94,580
Other receivables H At R 76,073 110,644
Recoverable value-added tax-net (note (g)) AR EEER —F 58 (FisEE)) 16,529 34,589
2,991,827 2,934,290

Less: non-current portion B SERNERER

— Prepayments for property, plant and equipment —JEfT4¥1% - BiE N 5% 1 7UE (5,103) (55,811)
2,986,724 2,878,479
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e MERRM T
14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14 EFRHEHMEWR (&)
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the fair values of trade and other PR2015%F 201412318 AEBZE S K
receivables of the Group approximate their carrying amounts. Hih Rz AR BEEEREERES -
The carrying values of trade and other receivables of the Group are REEE G REAM BB REER ST
denominated in the following currencies: (A :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
RMB AR 2,364,650 2,138,642
usD ETT 469,558 631,424
EUR BT 156,721 162,075
Others H 898 2,149
2,991,827 2,934,290
(@  The majority of the Group’s trade receivables are with credit @ AEBEXRISEZSEWRZEERN T

30H £150H ° 7120155 2014512
310 BH R A - IR T 58

period from 30 to 150 days. As at 31 December 2015 and
2014, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables,

amounts due from related parties and notes receivable

respectively are as follows:

KBRS R 2 BRE DM ORI -

Gross trade receivables: ESEWRETE: 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Within 3 months 318 A LA 791,208 1,066,851
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 186,193 191,866
Over 6 months 61& A A -+ 40,412 20,016
1,017,813 1,278,733

Amounts due from related parties: FEUR BA R 5 FRIE ¢ 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Within 3 months 318 A LA 743,520 723,650
3 to 6 months 3%6{E A 547,326 39,739
Over 6 months 61E B A+ 10,234 1,081
1,301,080 764,470
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14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(@  (Continued)

14 EFREMERR (&)

@ (&)

Notes receivable: EWEE: 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Within 3 months 3EAUA 196,269 320,271
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 354,382 379,114
550,651 699,385

As at 31 December 2015, the trade receivables of
HK$934,078,000 (2014: HK$1,184,492,000) are not impaired.

(b) As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of
HK$142,869,000 (2014: HK$117,641,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no significant financial difficulty
and based on past experience, the overdue amounts can be
recovered. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

R2015F12A831H B S E KRR
785 #934,078,0007T (20144 : B #&
1,184,492,0007T ) I A J {E °

b)) H2015F12A318 & 5 E KK
75 #142,869,0007T (20144 : ¥
117,641,0007T) B EAEARIFE - H %
W EE AWM BERENELE,ER:
BRBBAEE s EARIE R TUE © 5%
EEGRIR RO -

follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
3to 6 months 3%6fE A 141,671 117,234
Over 6 months 61E A LA E 1,198 407
142,869 117,641
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e R

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(©

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
HK$83,735,000 (2014: HK$94,241,000) were impaired. The
provision in relation thereto was approximately HK$54,218,000
(2014: HK$48,111,000) as at 31 December 2015. The
individual impaired receivables mainly relate to past due
receivables from customers. The ageing of these receivables is

as follows:

14 EFREMERR (&)

© 20155128310 B 5 R B
83,735,0007T (20144 : 7 #94,241,000
70) IR ME - 2015F 12 A31B 2 B
BB 478 154,218,0007T (20144 < B 1
48,111,0007T) © & 51 (B FE Y 51 & 2 6
B8 YNGR E o 2 Z R UK 2 R

BT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

3 to 6 months 3%61E A 44,522 74,632
Over 6 months 61& A A+ 39,213 19,609
83,735 94,241

Movements of the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade REEE SEBHRAREREZ T

receivables is as follows:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Beginning of the year F7) 48,111 41,750
Provision for impairment SR B B 9,277 10,269

Bad debts written off AR - (3,790

Currency translation differences INEITE =R (3,170) (118)
End of the year Fix 54,218 48,111

The creation and release of allowance for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the income
statement (note 25). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no expectation
of recovering additional cash.

The provision written back represented the subsequent
collection of previously provided impaired amounts.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

¥ K R 2 FEWROR BB E A A

HR 2T A (FfE25)

o TR EA R

RERmEBINRE  BIFF ABBRZER

—RHRE

BROBBERERKDZBERERES

B

85 REMBEF R BT BEE
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14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14 EFRHEHMEWR (&)

(d)  The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity 0 FARSESRRNEARNIEZRITERE
periods within six months. The maximum exposure to credit BeRWmERBMza AN EERR A Ll
risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of BRI Z A (EE - A E B R
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any B EA IR

collateral as security.

(e) The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”) to the © AEEEEAHEFRNERAER
State Tax Bureau for the goods purchased from its suppliers. BRZTHEEEER ([1EER]) - B
In accordance with the relevant PRC tax regulations, these VAT BRI EBBER 2SS EN R
can be offset with the output VAT arising from future sales but REHEE AR IHIRIGET - T ARE o
are not refundable. The balances at 31 December 2015 and 20155 K2014512 A31 B & sr 351K 8
2014 represented net input VAT after offsetting the output VAT ANEEFRphE A E R R S TRIL(E
payable by the Group for domestic sales made during the year. B TR IR BN FRE o
15 Pledged Bank Deposits 15 SEFBITENR
Certain bank balances were pledged against bank acceptance BETRITERTDIERNEBEFTE L 2 RITHK
notes issued by the Group and these deposits will be released upon HREHRZER MzSFERENEN ZHH
the maturity of the relevant bank acceptance notes issued. These RITREEBREH ARG 2SR TIF
pledged bank deposits bear interest at bank saving’s rates of 2.56% IR ERITIF U F) 2.56% (20144 « F 7 =
per annum (2014: 3.08% per annum). All pledged bank deposits are 3.08% ) &FE - FTEEEIRIRI T RIAA R ST
denominated in RMB. (ER
16 Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 BERASEEY
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank deposits and cash on hand WITFERRFERE 1,236,209 1,939,564
The weighted average effective interest rate on bank deposits was RITFRZNETFHEEREFFER1.46%
1.46% per annum (2014: 0.67% per annum). (20144  FH|%0.67% ) ©
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17 Share Capital and Share Options 17 RAEKRERE
(a) Share capital (@) B
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ZER CBRITREE:
Number of
shares
gny- 4=
('000) HK$'000
(F8) T T
At 1 January 2014 R20144F1A1H 2,849,207 1,424,603
Transition to no-par value regime on M2014F3A3HEER
3 March 2014 (Note (j)) BEEERD B (M) - 3,531,044
Shares issued under the share option RIZERES B BT
scheme (Note (ii)) At (BT = Gi) ) 12,826 9,994
At 31 December 2014 and R2014F 128318 &
1 January 2015 20151 A1H 2,862,033 4,965,641
Shares issued under the share option RIZEREFEI D BT
scheme (Note (iii)) A&t (B & i) ) 1,580 1,217
At 31 December 2015 R20159F12A31H 2,863,613 4,966,858

Note:

(i)

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March
2014, any amount standing to the credit of the share premium account
has become part of the Company’s share capital.

The share options exercised by the Directors and the employees of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, resulted in 12,826,000
shares being issued at HK$0.785 each, yielding proceeds after transaction
costs of approximately HK$9,994,000, which was recognised as share
capital. The weighted average closing price of shares of the Company at
the time of exercise of share options was HK$2.19.

The share options exercised by the employees of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015, resulted in 1,580,000 shares being
issued at HK$0.785 each, yielding proceeds after transaction costs of
approximately HK$1,217,000, which was recognised as share capital. The
weighted average closing price of shares of the Company at the time of
exercise of share options was HK$1.40.

(i)

BIR CBBRREND) (BBEEDIE622F )M K11
BITIHEH I BIE BB T R201463A38 AR
ARARE R EERE AR ARR RRAH

—H5-

HZE2014F12A31HILFE AEBEEREBTT
i B A - 8 5012,826,0008% A% 15 1% B A% 75 #50.785
THIERET MR I BEOMEGRBLEE
9,994,0007T * MR AR © BEAIEIETT(E RS - AN A R
&A% B AN #E 35 Y T (B B #2197 ©

HZE2015F12A31B ILFE  AEEREITEER
7 + 18 51,580,0000% A% 15 12 & % 75 #50.7857C 2 &
BT HIBR R 5 B 18 2 FT{S 5RIEA B #1,217,000
T R AR - BT TR AR BRG 2N
T U T E BAE.407T
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BRARBEIRE (&)

(b) Share options (b) AR

The share option scheme adopted on 27 June 2003 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”) was terminated on 30 May
2018 and a new share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of the Company at
the Company’s annual general meeting held on 30 May 2013.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant share options to eligible participants as
recognition and acknowledgement of the contributions that
the eligible participants have made or may make to the Group
or any affiliates; and to attract, retain and motivate talented
eligible participants to strive for the future developments and
expansion of the Group and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the eligible
participants. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme include (1) any full-time or part-time employees or
potential employees, executives or officers of the Group or any
affiliates; (2) any directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group or any
affiliates; or (8) anyone who, as to be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to
the Group or any affiliates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BRARBEIRE (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EARE (&)

The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of 10
years commencing from 30 May 2013. The limit on the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2013 Share Option Scheme (being 283,724,682 shares),
but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the 2013
Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of such limit must be separately approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting.

20134 FE Ak fE 5T 8 201395 H30H it
BB B105F - MR IR AR BI20134F fE
Rttt &l R E ] E At BB AR S T B B B
B ARITE 2 T AR TR ] T
BT RO EBREE - NMEHBBAARRT
R EEITIRMBEZ30% - MIBIEARAR]
20134F BB AR AT & K (T EL b RS AR A =T
B TR 2T E BRI TERA T
BT R AE - & £ T BBIBM2013
FRERETSEREE BARARE 3T
B 1D 48882 10% (BN283,724,6820% ) « #
AARARBRRAE LSRR ERIEE
#2013 B AR AT B R Z10% MR 58 -

AARAR AR R BI2013F B R dE 51 81 R (£ )
H AR 81X H Z A TR
PEM2(E A R T RASETT
HABRBEEZRNBE T5HEE
ARBE BTN EEZ1% - (EE—
FERMBIBILRE 2 BIEAEA AR
PRERNICRA S £ SITHAE -
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BRARBEIRE (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EARE (&)

Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or their respective associates, must be approved
by the Independent Non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding Independent Non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant,
must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the
grantee with payment of HK$1 as consideration within 28 days
from the date of approval for the grant of share options by the
Board. The exercise period of the share options granted may
be determined by the Board and in any event, such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular share options are granted in accordance with the
2013 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least the
highest of () the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
grant of share options, which must be a business day; and (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
share options, which must be a business day.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17
(b) Share options (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, 1,200,000 share options remain
outstanding and exercisable under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. No share options were granted to any eligible
participants since the adoption of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.

Movements in the share options granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015

RAERBRRE (F)
(b) B ()

72015512 A31 B * 1R #K20034F i i% 4
#1810 1#751,200,00017 88 B4 14 R 1715 &
A FIT{E - B2013F B AR i ot B R 4
Z AR BEfaeERSEERRE
R o

KB E2015F12A31 AL F & - 1B
20034 FRRR = BISR i 2 PR AR % Bh

were as follows: e
Balance Exercised Balance
Exercise asat during Lapsed asat
price Exercisable 1 January the year during 31 December
Name Date of Grant HK$ period 2015 (Note (i) the year 2015
120155 RER 20155
| 18182 BTE RER  12A8182
i RUAH B & & (HEE()) BAH &
Director Bz
Mr. Lam Ming Yung HHELE 30/07/2007 3900  30/07/2007- 400,000 - - 400,000
29/07/2017
Employees k&
In aggregate At 30/07/2007 3900  30/07/2007- 700,000 - (400,000) 300,000
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 0.785  01/04/2010- 2,080,000 (1,580,000) - 500,000
31/03/2017
Total At 3,180,000 (1,580,000) (400,000) 1,200,000
Note: B 5

0] The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date on which the share options were exercised
was HK$1.42.

[0} SERBAEETR. . A HAT AR BB
I W T (B R 1 .427T
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BRARBEIRE (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EARE (&)
The fair values of the options granted are determined using the EREEREZ AAEERAIZER
Binomial Valuation Model (‘the Model”). Key assumptions of HERE] ([ZEE])EF -ZRE 2
the Model are set out below: FERBHIIMNT
9 January 30 July
Date of grant: 2009 2007
RHE A 2009471 A9H 200747 A30H
Risk-free rate: R b A = 1.299% 4.13%
Expected dividend vield: TEHIRR B K : 3% 0%
Expected volatility of the market A BIRRAD T B 2 TR AR I -
price of the Company’s shares: 52.34% 65.38%
Expected option life: R iE 2 TREAF B 8.2 years 5.23 years
8.2F 5.234F
Fair value as at the date of grant REEEBz AAEE (A2 : HK$25,229,000 HK$3,453,000
(approximately): 25,229,000 A #3,453,0007T
The Model requires the input of subjective assumptions, FZER Z R AT EBRE (BERER
including the volatility of share price. As changes in subjective 18) cAHRBATBREZEBSEH AR
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, BEMTERKEATE WEERR %
in the directors’ opinion, the Model does not necessarily BAKNERFEEREALBEZE—
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of share A FERE.
options.
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18 Other Reserves

18 HtbfE

Share-  Available-
Statutory General  Enterprise Share based for-sale
reserve reserve  expansion option payment revaluation  Exchange Merger
fund fund fund reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
SR 4
EERE  -REE  LERR BRE  AE@EN  THUE
£e ¢ He RE  XfRE  ERRE  EXRE  AUERE &if
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ABTr #ETr BT E¥Tr A%t BETr A%t BETx
Note (a) Note (a) Note (a) Note (b) Note (c)
M) Wi (a) M) Wiz o) Mz
Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014F1B1R &S 5,783 156,391 147,238 25,779 19,423 13,587 253969  (3,258013) (2,635,843
Contribution by owners relating to BREE ARG BER
share-based payment (note (b)(i) SUEEEIGEL ) - - - - 11,700 - - - 1,700
Change in value of avallable-for-sdle WL ESREEERES:
financial assets, net of tax pilloY b - - - - - 6,011 - - 6,011
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETRE 810 44,192 44,192 - - - - - 89,194
Currency translation differences NEFEEE - - - - - - (10,996) - (10,99)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R2014F12831 AL 8 6,593 200,583 191,430 25,779 31,128 19,598 242973 (3258013)  (2,539,934)
Balance at 1 January 2015 R2015F1B1 A& 6,593 200,583 191,430 25,779 31,123 19,598 242973 (3,258,013)  (2,539,934)
Contribution by owners relating to BEREEANRRA
share-based payment BV GEET
(note (6) i, i) (B 55(o) ) i) - - - - 16,672 - - - 16,672
Change in value of avallable-for-sdle AT HESBEERE
financial assets, net of tax (note 12) £ MR HE (KxE12) - - - - - 11,704 - - 11,704
Transfer to statutory reserve BREEERE 1,155 7,451 7451 - - - - - 16,057
Currency translation differences MEHEEE - - - - - - (261,834) - (261,834)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015512A31 RS 7,748 208,034 198,881 25,779 41,195 31,302 (18,861)  (3,258,013)  (2,757,335)
(@) The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to follow (@ ArAEFEZHEBERRBESTHEL

the laws and regulations of the PRC and their articles of
association. These subsidiaries are required to provide for
certain statutory funds, namely, general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund, which are appropriated from net
profit after taxation but before dividend distribution based
on the local statutory accounts prepared in accordance
with accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its net
profit to the reserve fund until the balance of such fund has
reached 50% of its registered capital. Such appropriations
are determined at the discretion of the directors. The general
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated deficit or increase capital.

BRER WRE B ZBBERRARAI - %
SHERRARKETEZEES 25l
RRERBEERECEBRRES 1918
BRIREREHELE 2 Ik Z AL A £2ER -
ZAEMB BRI P RN ER 2 g5t
REIRABREM AR T AR ELZ BEE
BREFHE LSBT E QR AR AL
ME10% D EFHEHES  BEEXHEE
EoEhEE KM E AR Z250%M 1k < it
SRTHEEHBETE  —RFEEES
EERRE R AR R A AR R
EESIEMEAR -
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18 Other Reserves (Continued)

(b) (i)

2012 Midea Incentive Share Plan

Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”), the intermediate
holding company of the Company, implemented an
incentive share plan for core management staff of
Midea and its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2012, under which Midea Holding Co.,
Ltd. (“Midea Holding”), the controlling shareholder of
Midea, transferred its equity interest in Ningbo Meicheng
Equity Investment Partnership (“Ningbo Meicheng”)
to the participants to the said incentive share plan.
Ningbo Meicheng holds an aggregate interest of 3%
(representing 30 million shares) in the share capital of
Midea. Further to the arrangement of the incentive share
plan, Midea Holding transferred 3% of its equity interest
in Ningbo Meicheng to two executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (resigned on 9
July 2015) and Mr. Jiang Deging (resigned on 3 June
2014) on 22 November 2012.

Since the Company has no obligation to settle the
above share-based payment transaction granted by
Midea Holding, the difference between the fair value
of the shares transferred and the cash consideration
paid for such shares amounting to HK$19,423,000
was treated as an equity-settled share-based payment.
Award of the said shares were vested immediately and
this share-based payment were recognised as expenses
in the Group’s consolidated income statement. The
Group accounted for the shares granted to its Directors
as a contribution from its ultimate holding company
and credited it to share-based payment reserve. The
fair value of the shares transferred as estimated by
management using market approach by referencing the
market capitalisation and Price/Earnings multiple for
the listed and unlisted subsidiaries controlled by Midea
respectively.
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e MR RME

18 Other Reserves (Continued) 18 HftufE (&)

(b) (i) Midea Share Option Incentive Plan (b) (i) EMEREBBTEE—

Phase |

On 18 February 2014, Midea granted Midea Share
Option Incentive Plan Phase | to the core management
staff of Midea and its subsidiaries, under which
2,145,000 share options were granted to the Directors
and senior managements of the Group. A bonus issue
of shares on the basis of 15 bonus shares for every 10
existing shares to the shareholders was approved at
Midea’s annual general meeting held on 21 April 2014.
Therefore, the number of share options granted to the
Directors and senior management of the Group was
adjusted to 5,362,500 share options.

Since the Company has no obligation to settle the above
share-based payment transaction granted by Midea,
the fair value of the share options granted amounting to
HK$8,096,000 and HK$11,700,000 was treated as an
equity-settled share-based payment for the year ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively. Award of the
said share options were vested in three tranches subject
to the achievement of Midea’s performance target and
this share-based payment were recognised as expenses
in the Group’s consolidated income statement. The
Group accounted for the shares granted to its Directors
and senior managements as a contribution from its
ultimate holding company and credited it to share-based
payment reserve.

5

EWR2014F2 A18H MR M E
MEBARZLERABRLEERN
BREMEEE 8 Ruitm
AEBEERSREEABEL
2,145,00017 #& AR # - FA201454 A
B BRMNENRRBFAE £
AR F100R IR A I 0 A A K
15X AT R AL AR IR 25 75 2 » AUt
MAEEEERRATEABRD
# 8 R A 21 B 2 79 B8 735,362,500
D RENRAE

HARAAREETZ N ENRL
MARD AER S FHZ S - %
ERERE AR EBESESE
8,096,0007T % % #11,700,0007T
B9 Rl 48 /R & 220154 k2014
F12ABIAIEFENEREE I
Wfn BER BT o Ll HA0E
Rign=#HEB REHRREEZ
HORERKIB LI AE - T bARR D A ELHE
BT TR AR B AR S W Es R N
RAEML - AEBEKETHESM
BREEAB MR AR SR
BN RIVEH B REARR - T AL
MR B EE S TR
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18 Other Reserves (Continued) 18 HftufkE (&)

(b) (iii) Midea Share Option Incentive Plan
Phase Il

On 27 May 2015, Midea granted Midea Share Option
Incentive Plan Phase Il to the core management staff
of Midea and its subsidiaries, under which 2,280,000
share options were granted to the Directors and senior
managements of the Group.

Since the Company has no obligation to settle the above
share-based payment transaction granted by Midea,
the fair value of the share options granted amounting
to HK$8,576,000 was treated as an equity-settled
share-based payment for the year ended 31 December
2015. Award of the said share options were vested in
three tranches subject to the achievement of Midea’s
performance target and this share-based payment were
recognised as expenses in the Group’s consolidated
income statement. The Group accounted for the shares
granted to its Directors and senior managements as
a contribution from its ultimate holding company and
credited it to share-based payment reserve.

(c) Merger reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the acquisition under common control,
and the aggregate nominal value of share capital/paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group contributed by
the owners of the Company.
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e MR RME

19

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using taxation rates applicable to the

companies comprising the Group.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax

liabilities is as follows:

19 EEFTEH

T

BEFSTHRAREZL TR ZRRASE A
TRABERZHEEHEH -

BELEFMEREERELEMERAGEZ DTN

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTIS T EE -
- Deferred income tax assets to be — 128 A e 2 IEEFR ST E =
recovered within 12 months 19,499 44,631
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEEFSHARE:
- Deferred income tax liabilities to be -2 Rk < BIEFMSFRAE
released after more than 12 months 107,977 90,137
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — 1218 A Rk 2 BEFTS L B E
released within 12 months 28,247 29,870
136,224 120,007
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e HRRME
19 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 19 EZEFMEH (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during REEE BRI el AR R A ISR E0
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances RIEFMEHEERBERERNZEE T :
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BEFSNEE:
Deferred
Impairment Fair value Unpaid  government
losses losses accruals grants Total
REFE QAEEFE RAERER ELHRHH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H 7,349 453 21,984 8,606 38,392
Credited/(charged) to consolidated 44 R A
income statement st/ (H18) 8,426 1,639 (2,979) (749) 6,343
Currency translation differences N EERE 12 6 (89) (33) (104)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 15,787 2,098 18,922 7,824 44,631
Charged to consolidated income W44 Wz & RIIK
statement (7,593) (1,000) (11,274) (3,579) (23,446)
Currency translation differences N E R (624) (83) (663) (316) (1,686)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H 7,570 1,015 6,985 3,929 19,499
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry- fitt B 1& A& B FE AR T R & IR B RETR IR S & -
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit HeREREE 2 PIEBEARIEFMSHEE -
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not A AEEE T AR S A R BRI A 2 518 A5
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$6,083,000 (2014: Nil) in #24,330,0007T (20144 : £) - AN 5 B W £
respect of losses amounting to HK$24,330,000 (2014: Nil) that can TSR R I ES 1B AT A 2 7B 16,083,000 (2014
be carried forward against future taxable income. Such losses will F )RS A E - A #AE1E B 1R20205F
expire on 2020. i o
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19 EEFREH (F)

19 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFMBHEE:
Undistributed
profits of PRC Fair value  Revaluation
subsidiaries gain of assets Total
H
MEARZ DRERE
R D IEF Uy & BEREE &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB BETT
At 1 January 2014 7201461818 98,083 6,405 6,202 110,690
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RizalRaERA
income statement ks (GtA) 30,674 (10) (794) 29,870
Charged directly to equity BERER R - 1,060 - 1,060
Payment of withholding tax BB (21,278) - - (21,278)
Currency translation differences SN B =R (292) 17 (26) (335)
At 31 December 2014 2014F12H31H 107,187 7,438 5,382 120,007
Charged/(credited) to consolidated REFEHEERA
income statement ok (GtA) 28,101 928 (781) 28,248
Charged directly to equity EENESNR - 2,065 - 2,065
Payment of withholding tax BTN (6,148) - - (6,148)
Currency translation differences NS =5 (7,113 (551) (284) (7,948)
At 31 December 2015 2015F12A31H 122,027 9,880 4,317 136,224

HPIA I 2 BIRRE B BN R R TR HI TR
REAFHIACHRELEFA SR AE (FIkRERE
EERE) o

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of all subsidiaries after the deduction of relevant
statuary reserves.
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GAMBEENE
20 Deferred Government Grants 20 EFEBUS AL
HK$'000
ST
At 1 January 2014 20141 818 33,954
Receipt of grants [REeE 1 1,262
Credited to income statement Al E R (486)
Currency translation difference SN B =R (115)
At 31 December 2014 HR2014F12A31H 34,615
At 1 January 2015 201591 A1H 34,615
Credited to income statement FFAME R (479)
Currency translation difference SNEE YT E = RE (1,999)
At 31 December 2015 2015912 H31H 32,137
The amounts represented subsidies granted by local government FHESED PRI E BN KA KIERE
authority in the PRC which related to acquisition of leasehold land i 2 405 PR LA R S E TR R B B 1R B HR
and land use rights and high technology research and development o1
program.
The deferred government grants will be amortised to other gains from R A MERE & E v A 2 B A R
the point at which the relevant assets are ready for use on a straight- BEAFEAFHNZEG B M-

line basis over the assets’ useful lives.
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e M mRME
21 Trade and Other Payables 21 EZRHMESRK
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Trade payables (note (a)) ZHRNF (H5E@) 1,077,052 1,560,513
Notes payable (notes (a),(b)) ERERE (M@ () 1,400,265 1,490,024
Amounts due to related parties (notes (a), 35(0)  FEEAEE 5 3 E (M 5k (@), 35(0)) 145,638 79,948
2,622,955 3,130,485
Provision for staff welfare and bonus BTRHMREAEE 126,975 134,399
Accruals JEIRE A 24,090 19,456
Advances from customers FEREFIERER 8,212 15,149
Other payables H A TR 206,934 117,453
2,989,166 3,416,942
(@)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables, notes payable and @ AEEESHENI EBNIEREKENSE
amounts due to related parties of the Group is as follows: 577 IR BRER AT IR T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T T T
Within 3 months 3ME AR 1,661,358 2,595,808
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 951,928 528,561
Over 6 months 61 A A+ 9,669 6,116
2,622,955 3,130,485
(o)  The balance represents non-interest bearing bank acceptance b) BRESHREANEBREL 2 TR ERITR
notes issued by the Group with maturity periods of less HER DEER R E A - 72015
than six months. As at 31 December 2015, certain notes F12R318 B TENERUARITH
payable were pledged by bank deposits of approximately KK #76,960,0007T (20144 : B ¥
HK$76,960,000 (2014: HK$79,928,000). 79,928,0007T ) {E A K
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e MR RME

22 Derivative Financial Instruments 22 fTHEE€mIT A
2015 2014
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L BE =4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BB BB
Commodity futures contracts (a) HmEEE D) 7,963 1,688 116 6,731
Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) SMEZE 24 9 (b) 1,286 6,063 25,859 9,870
9,249 7,751 25,975 16,601

(@  The Group has entered into various copper and aluminum
futures contracts to manage the fluctuation of copper and
aluminum price which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting. The fair value gain of the non-hedging copper
and aluminum futures contracts amounting to approximately
HK$10,792,000 (note 24) were dealt within the consolidated
income statement during the year (2014: fair value loss
HK$17,614,000).

The notional principal amounts of outstanding commodity
futures contracts as at 31 December 2015 were
HK$201,847,000 (2014: HK$204,328,000).

(b)  The Group has entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The fair
value gain of non-hedging foreign exchange forward contracts
amounting to approximately HK$24,420,000 (note 24), were
dealt within the consolidated income statement during the year
(2014: HK$24,182,000).

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts as at 31 December 2015 were
HK$268,003,000 (2014: HK$1,141,587,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date

is the fair value of the derivative assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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e MR RME

23 Borrowings 23 BN
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current B &A
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 52 ERERIT B AR — M 4R 20,650 87,731
At 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable R2015F 128310 AEERITERZERB
as follows: SR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FR 20,650 87,731
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and NEE 2 GG RS8R R ELER
the contractual repricing dates are as follows: EEBET:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Borrowings with floating rate as: FEMER
6 months or less 61E A AT 20,650 87,731
The effective interest rates of the above floating rate borrowings RENR ElY BER 2 BERENER2.01%
at the end of the year were 2.01% per annum (2014: 3.08% per (2014%F : FHI#3.08% ) °
annum).
The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates their fair MR ERR  RITERCERAERER
value, as the impact of discounting is not significant. AEERE-
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RE M RRMEE
23 Borrowings (Continued) 23 B (&)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the ERZEAEN TS EEE-

following currencies.

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
usD E 18,247 87,731
EUR BT 2,403 -
20,650 87,731
24 Other Gains/(Losses) - Net 24 Hitliz, (FE) — 358
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Government grants received (a) B U T #E B (a) 18,079 11,949
Amortisation of deferred government grants EFE BT f R 8 (P 5E20)
(note 20) 479 486
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBIEA:
— fair value gain/(loss) on commodity futures T RHEERIEEASFREZ
contracts not qualified for hedge accounting ARBEANANER
(note 22(a)) W, (&) (HE22()) 10,792 (17,614)
— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward —NEEEBIEE P ERTEE Y
contracts not qualified for hedge accounting SNER AN A R EAERE
(note 22(b)) (M5E22(b)) 24,420 24,182
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial — &] #f H & & gh & & 2 IR S UL A
assets — equity investment —RERE 13,032 11,395
Exchange gain/(loss) PE 5 Uk zs, (518) 33,827 2,210
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE - BEMELE 2 EE
plant and equipment (44,871) (13,015)
Claim from suppliers REHEFNRE 2,348 7,136
Rental income HEUWA 6,903 4,417
Impairment charge of intangible assets (note 9)  EFEERMERM X (H:E9) - (37,880)
Investment income from available-for-sale AHEEEMEE 2 IRERA
financial assets — wealth management products — — 8 = & 12 & fn 20,852 -
Others EAith 4,418 896
90,279 (10,258)
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GAMBRRMEE
24 Other Gains/(Losses) - Net (Continued) 24 Hbhzs (F8)— R (F)
(@) For the year ended 31 December 2015, majority of the @ EHZE2015F12A318ILFE - Ko
amount was granted as subsidies for the Group’s contribution LIRS BRGNS BB R EMA
to taxation and technology innovation. For the year ended A2 BEN B 220145128318 1E
31 December 2014, majority of the amount was granted FE - REBOMUFIBHRELAEE
as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to taxation and B REEIE2ER
employment.
25 Expenses by Nature 25 MBS EZEX
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, seling and marketing FFAEEE A HE RS HEER T
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BRI 2B T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAEMI ZEFEERA (K:E13)

(note 13) 5,918,722 6,886,297
Employee benefit expenses (note 26) & B FIF 52 (KisE26) 894,413 968,136
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BB R EITE (7))

(note 7) 188,712 150,227
Depreciation of investment properties (note 8) LEMENE ([:E8) 2,898 2,944
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE 0 e+ b FARE#E 8 (P 5E6)

land use rights (note 6) 5,213 5,295
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) EREESHE (H:F9) 4,415 3,166
Provision for impairment of 2 5 EWGORE R

trade receivables-net (note 14(c)) — 5 (MEE14(0)) 9,277 10,269
Provision/(reversal) of impairment of GFERERME(#E) —F58

inventories-net (note 4.1(f)) (M5E4.1() 874 (4,762)
Operating leases rental for land and buildings T REFREEEES 12,533 13,731
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R &

- Audit services —ZHBRH 2,463 2,539
— Non-audit services — I BR TS 183 667
Research and development costs (a) T & 2R AR (a) 108,823 82,904

(@  Under the research and developments costs, an amount of

HK$97,236,000 (2014: HK$81,619,000) was employee benefit
expenses for research and development staff.

@ 7T M B E Ak A B £97,236,0000T
(20144 : #:1:81,619,0007T ) AR K 5
BETZREWAMMAS -
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26 Employee Benefit Expenses

26 BEERAFAX

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Wages and salaries TERF® 671,443 756,149

Pension costs-defined contribution plans (a) BRE KA —BEHRRET (@) 53,456 51,733

Medical benefits-defined contribution plans BB EMN —BEE ARG 2 23,944 26,172

Redundancy payment EEE 38,366 10,318
Contribution by owners relating to BEBEAARO AERZ O ER

share-based payment (note 18(b)) (FFEE18(b) ) 16,672 11,700

Other allowances and benefits Eqth)2 80 R EF 90,532 112,064

894,413 968,136

(@) Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
companies (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employers and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group is currently required to make a monthly contribution
equivalent to 15% to 28% of the employees’ salary (subject
to a floor and cap) as set by local municipal governments to
each scheme locally to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.
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e M mRME
27 Finance Income/(Expenses) - Net 27 MEWA(BX) — %
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Interest expenses B (15,972) (33,290)
Exchange gain/(loss) PE 5 kst (518) 11,810 (21,319)
Finance expenses RERS (4,162) (54,609)
Finance income — interest income on BEUWA —RITFRZFEHBA
bank deposits 24,137 16,416
Net finance income/(expenses) BMEWA S (AX)FHE 19,975 (38,193)

28

Income Tax Expense

(a)

(b)

(c)

Macao and British Virgin Islands profits tax

The Group has not been subject to any taxation in these
jurisdictions for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at annual income tax rate of
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 16.5%).

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Group companies registered in the PRC are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT"). According to the new CIT
effective from 1 January 2008, all PRC enterprises are subject
to a standard corporate income tax rate of 25%, except for
enterprises under specific preferential policies and provisions
are disclosed as follows.

GD Welling, Welling Washer and Wuhu Welling have been
eligible to high technology enterprises CIT incentive starting
from year 2008 to year 2016. The applicable preferential tax
rate of high technology enterprises is 15% for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: 15%).

28 FREBiIFX

(a)

(b)

(c)

RFIREBEZHBRNES

REFREE2015F12A31H ILFEH
AWML E R AR Z A FIE (2014
FoaE)o

BERNEH

HE2015%F12A31H L FE &HEF
BRI REEFEHE M E16.5%:1 18
(20144F : 16.5% ) °

HEEEMEHR

AERBR A BT A R R RS B
EER ([REMSH]) - 1REB2008
FIAIABRERZH P EEEMEHR
BT X SERNEREERER
MIEZ % PR EIARIIAZ25%IR
EPEMSHEEM -

B B B Tk B 0 I B 2 M) B B FR2008
FE016FHEERZARMEHREE
2 1R EFT1S T 52 E - 8 £2015F 12 A 31
AILFE SR cE 2 TRESERR
R A15% (20144 : 15% ) ©
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28 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 28 FriE®iBA (&)
(¢) PRC Corporate Income Tax (Continued) (c) REILEMEH (&)

VEZ B E H2010F £2015F H & B 1%
EHESFRECEZCENSHER-
HZE2015F12A31H IEF B s #F B

Huaian Welling has been eligible to high technology enterprises
CIT incentive from year 2010 to year 2015. The applicable
preferential tax rate of high technology enterprises is 15% for

the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 15%).

2 BB K A15% (20145

15%) ©

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT

Current tax BNERFT1S#%
— PRC corporate income tax —FRPEMSH 53,269 116,197
— Tax paid for transfer of share —RHOEFELN2RIE - 29,406
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBERER 3,359 2,087
56,628 147,690
Deferred income tax RIEFTIETR 51,694 23,527
Income tax expense TSR 108,322 171,217

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average

REBRRATAE Z HIRERAE R
MEERZ IR E A E 2 2R

tax rate applicable to profits of the entities as follows: Wz ZRZWMT:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before income tax Bk B 1S5 A1 A 631,021 852,392
Calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate 2 H BLE TE B R 25%ET H
of 25% (2014: 25%) (20144 : 25%) 157,755 213,098
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates EAMERE=E 7 £ (75,951) (99,214)
Under-provision of tax in prior year F—FEHBEREEHE IR - 29,406
Withholding tax on attributable profit FEMRFETEIR 28,101 30,674
Income not subject to tax BAERB 2 WA (11,478) (7,956)
Expenses not deductible for AR 2 2
taxation purposes 3,812 5,209
Tax losses not recognised RERBELEFMBHRIBEEL
as deferred income tax assets HIEEE 6,083 -
Income tax expense s 108,322 171,217
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28 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 28 FriE®iBA (&)
(c) PRC Corporate Income Tax (Continued) (c) FEILEMRBH (&)
PRC corporate income tax is provided for at 25% (2014: 25%) FECEMSHRIDIERBE TN B2
of the taxable profits for the PRC statutory financial reporting IRE R A 225% (20144 1 25% ) &1
purposes, adjusted for items which are not assessable or 1’7 WA A Bl FE TSI A AT
deductible for the PRC corporate income tax purpose. s Al R BB TR
The tax charge relating to components of other comprehensive HLH fth 2 E R S0 0 AERE M BT S
income is as follows: BN
2015
Before tax Tax charged After tax
RRBE AT BEXH Mm%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT BT

Fair value gains on available-for-sale At HE SR EE 2

financial assets (note 12) NI EERE (KME12) 13,769 (2,065) 11,704
Currency translation differences SNEETE =R (265,564) - (265,564)
(251,795) (2,065) (253,860)

2014
Before tax Tax charged After tax
B Al MIEZ R
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BT BT BT

Fair value gains on available-for-sale Al HESRMEE >

financial assets (note 12) A EEYNE (MEE12) 7,071 (1,060) 6,011
Currency translation differences INEETHE =58 (11,198) - (11,198)
(4,127) (1,060) (5,187)
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29 Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic

(b)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

29 BREF

(a)

X

SR ARy A 2 T AT
T LASE A E BT ERAR 2 AT K
e

2015 2014
Profit for the year attributable to RATRHEA ANEBIEEENE
the owners of the Company (HK$’000) (BEFIT) 525,030 678,372
Weighted average number of ordinary BREAEEREREF 2
shares for the purposes of basic TER N E (TR)
earnings per share (‘000 shares) 2,863,478 2,854,867
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRRERZF) (BI) 18.34 23.76

Diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, diluted
earnings per share were calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive
potential ordinary shares of the Company are performance-
based share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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29 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

29 BREF (&)
(b) #58 (&)

2015 2014
Profit for the year attributable to the owners 782 Bl A A JE 15 & E 5 )H
of the Company (HK$’000) (BT 525,030 678,372
Weighted average number of ordinary RAREATEEREARTN 2
shares for the purposes of basic LB NEFHE (TR)
earnings per share (‘000 shares) 2,863,478 2,854,867
Adjustments for share options BRI E (TR
('000 shares) 243 1,316
2,863,721 2,856,183
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) GREERF (E) 18.33 23.75
30 Dividend 30 KR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Proposed final dividend of HKB.5 cents per BRI ES TR EBAe.5E I
ordinary share (2014: HK7.5 cents) (20144 : 7.5781) 186,135 214,652

At a meeting held on 14 March 2016, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK6.5 cents per ordinary share (2014: HK7.5 cents). This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
consolidated financial statements.

The proposed final dividend for 2014 by the directors on 11 March
2015 was HK$214,652,000, based on the 2,862,032,822 ordinary
shares issued as at 31 December 2014 of HK7.5 cents per share.
Subsequently, 1,580,000 shares were issued under the share option
scheme before the approval of the final dividend at the annual
general meeting of the shareholders on 29 May 2015. As a result, the
actual final dividend paid for 2014 was HK$214,771,000 based on
2,863,612,822 shares of HK7.5 cents per share.

R2016F3A4BRIT 8 L EFRRETS
AR EARR B AR T B A6 .55 (20144 7.5/
ill) e BB 2R B R ERER A WIS HRER N
f B 7 FEAST RS o

EEZR2015F3 A 11 H 5k 2 2014F K HAR B
R BHE214,652,0007T (1RIEHR20145F12H31H
2.2,862,032,8228 B2 21T E AR R B AR 7 57
FTE) - Hig ERER201555 7208 82972
IR ERBE ARG FHEERBANRE 2 AT 1,580,000
AR AR D IR AR BB AR A S B 31T - E Ut - 20145 2
NEBR KBRS A 8214,771,0007T (R &
2,863,612,822/% iz fn K B A7 5B LETE ) ©
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31

RERETRERMEE

Cash Flows
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (@) HIBRFTEHRATF BHEKEEE
cash generated from operations: ZHEESHERK:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before income tax OBk BT 1S5 A A 631,021 852,392
Adjustments for: R
— Depreciation of properties, plant and —WE - -BEREZBTE (KE7)
equipment (note 7) 188,712 150,227
— Depreciation of investment properties —REWENE (WiE8)
(note 8) 2,898 2,944
— Amortisation of leasehold land and — T & Tt [ - Hb{F A R
land use rights (note 6) (Hf5Ee) 5,213 5,295
— Amortisation of intangible assets — |\ EERE (W)
(note 9) 4,415 3,166
— Deferred government grants (note 20) — IR BT BA (FTRE20) (479) (486)
— Losses on disposals of property, —HEYVE BELREEIE
plant and equipment (note 24) (HMf5E24) 44,871 13,015
— Contribution by owners related to —BEEEAURDABERIFH
share-based payment (note 18(p)) BBt (HFE18(b)) 16,672 11,700
— Share of profits of investments — R AR E AR 2 IR E FE
accounted for using the equity (HFEE11)
method (note 11) (51,396) (41,253)
— Dividend income from —AIHEESREE ZREWA
available-for-sale financial assets —RRERE (Mi3E24)
— equity investment (note 24) (13,032) (11,395)
— Interest income (note 27) —F B A (KI5E27) (24,137) (16,416)
— Interest expenses (note 27) —F B FAX (HE27) 15,972 33,290
— Impairment of inventories — net - HFERE—F8 3,068 2,329
— Provision for impairment of trade — B S RBGURERE
receivables — net (note 14(c)) — 358 (M3E14()) 9,277 10,269
— Impairment charge on intangible —EREEERERS
assets - 37,880
— Investment income from —AIHEESREE ZIREWRA
available-for-sale financial assets —-MEEEER (Kik24)
— wealth management products
(note 24) (20,852) -
Changes in working capital: BELESEE:
— Inventories -FE& 433,940 (117,546)
— Derivative financial instruments —PTAESRT A 7,876 13,737
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 RHMERR (165,925) 107,269
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMEMNR (427,776) (19,705)
Cash generated from operations BEEEZRE 660,338 1,036,712
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31

32

33

Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

RERERERME (&

(b) HEME BERRBHREN
HERE:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net book amount (note 7) BREDFE (M=) 64,709 54,308
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE  RE k& EERE (MiE24)
plant and equipment (note 24) (44,871) (13,015)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE - BWE RREBSHT
plant and equipment 19,838 41,293
There is no non-cash transaction during this year. FAMEIERERH -
Contingent Liabilities 32 FAREE

Except for the financial guarantees disclosed in note 34, as at 31
December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any material

Br M 5E84FT IR BE 2 B & HE (R AN 120154 &
2014F12A31 8 AEEMEEMERNNARE

contingent liabilities. f&e
Commitments 33 A&IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAREIE
Capital expenditures contracted for at the end of the year is as RERBRTHEARRS AT
follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Capital expenditures contracted for BRIAERBEENERFAS

but not provided

67,906 196,928
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33 Commitments (Continued)

33 AiE (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the Group REEARE T AT 2 2 TR E R R
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: Bz & EAERIRRENT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
Not later than one year THB@—F 6,468 11,254
Later than one year and BE—FENBBRSF
not later than five years 13,780 2,128
20,248 13,382
34 Financial Guarantees 34 REER

The Group and the controlling shareholder of an associate
have jointly and severally given guarantee to banks in respect
of the banking facilities extended to the associate of the Group
of approximately HK$656,497,000 (2014: approximately
HK$986,183,000). As at 31 December 2015, bank loans
of approximately HK$179,045,000 (2014: approximately
HK$423,374,000) being guaranteed by the Group to the associate
have been drawn down. Under the terms of the relevant financial
guarantee contract, the Group and the controlling shareholder of the
associate will make payments to reimburse the lenders upon failure
of the guaranteed associate to make payments when the bank loans

are due.

Terms and face values of the liabilities guaranteed were as follows:

AN ER B R B N EHE AR AR B (R B2 M B B
TN & E B N T R EAY 7 15656,497,0007T
(20144 : 49755986,183,0007T ) Z $R1TIR{E1E
R -TR2015F12A31H  ZSHME ARID IR
V7R S B R DR T E R K07 #5179,045,000
TC (20144F : 4978 %423,374,0007T ) ° IRIEFE RS
BB ERE AR AR B R B D EERR
RERATIEREE QR EETRITER R IR
F - BEEETERAC

EREGEZGRREERT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Face value Face value
HE H{E
Financial guarantees BhE R
— bank loans drawn —BIRIURITER 179,045 423,374
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34

35

Financial Guarantees (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial
guarantees are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors
consider that the possibility of the default of the parties involved is
remote, accordingly no value has been recognised at the inception of
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period.

Related Party Transactions

The ultimate holding company of the Group is Midea Holding
Company Limited, which owns 68.68% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 31.32% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. He Xiangjian.

Transactions between the Group and other related parties during the
year are summarised below:
Transactions with related parties

(a)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties

35

35

BMEER (&)

EEAH ZEREEROAEERVSGTE
REFWAEKR - IR BB IR L Z A RE
HEM - Bt RERA ORBERREHR
AR EE -

BREE XS

REBRLIER AR AENZRAER AT &
WA RN F)68.68% 2 fX17  #2 T-31.32% 2 &1
MEAFE AEEZHRIEBRALAAZE
Ctas

o

AEEBEMBEBITNERZZZHALT

(a) RS 2R 5

AT T ERBEESE T IR B RT R T B EZ

in accordance with the terms mutually agreed between the RFEITZR S
respective parties:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Sales to related parties*: ERE S HE
— Controlled by the ultimate — R AR AR A B2
holding company 3,656,024 4,116,975
Purchases from related parties*: [ BR R 5 BREE
— Controlled by the ultimate — AR BE A B )
holding company 47,163 45,538
— Controlled by a close family member —HEEEBRAREERREZ
of the ultimate holding company’s T IRIE
substantial shareholder 152,891 142,915
200,054 188,453
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35 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 35 BEHEAIRS (&)
(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (a) HEBEBE2RS (&)
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT

Other transactions with related parties EEEE;A 2 HMtR S
- Controlled by the ultimate — B RAER QA E
holding company

(i) Logistics services received from (i) 1) B Bk 5 JE B s AR A%

related parties™ 67,812 53,566
(i) Rental income received from (i) =) BA S 5 EER A A & UL A

a related party” 4,348 4,417
(i) Contribution by owners related to (i) B A ALARRD R EE S H

share-based payment (note 18(b)) B (MFE18(0)) 16,672 11,700
(iv) Investment income from v BEFE A REZ TR ESHEE

available-for-sale financial assets -EEEERRERA

— wealth management products

subscribed from a related party 1,752 -
(v) Wealth management products VEBB I REZ2VEEEEMD

subscribed from a related party 119,363 -
(vi) Sales of intangible assets to (Vi) MRS D ENEREE

a related party” - 1,089
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35 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 35 BEHEAIRS (&)
(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (a) HEBEBE2RS (&)

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET R BT

Financial services provided by B B 1R A A B A AR A
the Finance Company*
- Controlled by the ultimate —HEAERATES

holding company

(i) Short-term borrowings received () RBREHAE R - 6,310
(i) Short-term borrowings repaid (i) EB R HRfE R - 6,310
(ii) Issues of bills (i) B B 2 4% 3,320,236 2,909,303
(iv) Discounted bills (iv) BhER =& 1,303,681 450,430
(v) Interest income on deposits received (v) Yo ERAF J A B A 22,756 9,331
(vi) Interest expense and V) TR B RIEITE A

bank charges paid 14,387 10,164
(vii) Settlement of foreign currency (vii) FNEE 4 519,039 252,780

The related party transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in
section “Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions”
of the Report of the Directors.

# The related party transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

MBI 2SR ETRBE AT ER 25
BRER S ETHRAEIAERTE 2 R
ERENESEWS [HEXFHRIFERE
5] —H#he

# BB IR BN ETRAEATERZ
SERER S A AN BARZENS
14A76(1) M RIERE  HERRET L
MARAEV1IAT 2 WBERHE
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35 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 35 BEHEAIRS (&)

(b) EEEAEETS Z A6k

(b) Balances with related parties

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET R BT

Due from related parties included in EWEHIRE BEEE3R

trade and other receivables: Hib WK

— Controlled by the ultimate
holding company

— B AR AR R

1,301,080 764,470

The credit periods for majority of amounts due from related
parties are within 180 days.

As at 31 December 2015, the amounts due from related
parties including notes receivable of approximately
HK$880,492,000 (2014: HK$334,144,000).

REBLY B FE U BRESE T SRIB 2 (EEHA 180
HA-

R2015F12831H ' JER Bl S A E &
58 B 4E B I 32 45 40 78 #5880,492,0007T
(20144F - 7 %334,144,0007T) °

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET R BT

Due to related parties included in
trade and other payables: Hit R

— Controlled by the ultimate holding

ENBEIRE BEEESR

— B AR AR RN R

company 28,057 25,434
— Controlled by a close family member —HEEERRAREZRER 2O HES
of the ultimate holding company’s
substantial shareholder 117,581 54,514
145,638 79,948

As at 31 December 2015, the amounts due to related parties
including notes payable of approximately HK$95,971,000
(2014: HK$21,359,000).

The balances due from/to related parties are denominated in
RMB, unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.
No balance due from related parties is past due or impaired.
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35 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 35 BEHEAIRS (&)

(b) EREAEETS Z#E6R ()

(b) Balances with related parties (Continued)

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other balances with related parties SR 2 Hib i sh
- Controlled by the ultimate — B RAER QT
holding company
(i) Short-term deposits in the Finance () R AT 2 EAIFER
Company 1,234,141 1,928,696
(il Bills have been issued but not yet (i) PEF A B FAE R AR R E
due in the Finance Company 1,506,806 1,541,199
(i) Discounted bills receivable not yet due (i) B %A B2 8518
in the Finance Company BRI EKEE 1,194 257,645
(iv) Short-term deposits in a related party  (iv) A BEEE 5 2 58 HA1F 5% - 19,226
(v) Available-for-sale financial assets Vv BB RE 2 AIHHESRERE
— wealth management products ~-WEEEEM
subscribed from a related party 119,363 -
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36 Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 36 ZAQTBMBMRRAXREEED
Movement of the Company

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz B E REstE 20 29
Interests in subsidiaries NGNS 5,371,945 5,670,035
5,371,965 5,670,064
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 R HAbFEWER 484 485
Dividend receivable U B 203,000 276,000
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReZEEY 2,315 6,524
205,799 283,009
Total assets REE 5,577,764 5,953,073
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to AT EE AEEER
the owners of the Company
Share capital &N 4,966,858 4,965,641
Other reserves H G 349,813 695,100
Retained earnings REB &7 246,707 276,476
Total equity R 5,563,378 5,937,217
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERNR 14,386 15,856
Total liabilities FEN=Ri 14,386 15,856
Total equity and liabilities EnkAEEE 5,577,764 5,953,073
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved EESN2016E3 A 14 ERD T 2 Bt
by the board of directors on 14 March 2016 and was signed on its Bz WRERESEEE-
behalf.
Director Director
EF EF
Xiang Weimin Pan Xinling
EER BHR
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36 Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 36 A QT BMRRAKREEEE T

Movement of the Company (Continued) (&)
Other reserves
HAit A
Share
Retained option Exchange
earnings reserve reserve Total
REEF  BRERE EXHE &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BB T BT
Balance at 1 January 2014 M2014F1 818 2 &5tk 246,984 25,779 689,397 715,176
Profit for the year FEMHE 272,306 - - -
Dividend paid relating to 2013 BH2013F 2 EFKE (242,814) - - -
Currency translation differences NS =5 - - (20,076) (20,076)
Balance at 31 December 2014 M2014512A31A 2 &8 276,476 25,779 669,321 695,100
Balance at 1 January 2015 R2015F1 810 2 &tk 276,476 25,779 669,321 695,100
Profit for the year FEMHE 185,002 - - -
Dividend paid relating to 2014 BRH2014F 2 EFKE
(note 30) (BF&E30) (214,771) - - -
Currency translation differences SN Z R - - (345,287) (345,287)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H 2 &tk 246,707 25,779 324,034 349,813
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37 Benefits and Interests of Directors

37 EE/EARER

(a) EERBSITHRARZENR
R

(a) Benefits and interests of directors and chief
executive

EERERTBRABZHFHMERIE (B
BREED) F383ER AR (HEESE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments disclosed
pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

follows:

MERER) ROIF2R 2 RERENT -

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZ2015F12A31H L EE
Contribution
by owners
relating to
Salaries Retirement share-based
and other  Discretionary scheme payment
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-total (note) Total
BBERA
BB
ek Bffe EBZAM
Name of Director £ e £hER ] =g BE 55 hat BRE(KE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥TR BB E¥T R A¥TR BB AT B¥TR
Executive Directors HirEs
Mr. Xiang Weimin () RER L&) - 543 2,203 5 2,841 - 2,841
Mr. Zhong Lin (Chief Executive) (i)~ 465 (ERHTE) (i) - 503 1,133 9 1,645 328 1,973
Ms. Pan Xinling () EHRTL() - 238 1,193 5 1,436 - 1,436
Mr. L Li (i) kbt ] - 89 1,576 2 1,667 - 1,667
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang () BREEEWN - 643 978 5 1,626 - 1,626
Mr. Yu Yonghua (v RKEEEW - 288 - 4 292 328 620
Mr. Luo Huagang (v) FEMAITEW) - 475 207 8 2,554 328 2,882
Ms. Yuan Liqun mMBRT - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Feide ERERE - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUHTES
Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong EYNEE 180 - - - 180 - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MABELE 180 - - - 180 - 180
Ms. Cao Zhoutao Eifgat 180 - - - 180 - 180
540 2,179 9,244 38 12,601 984 13,585

] 84 Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

37 EEEANRER (&)

37 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Continued)

(a) Benefits and interests of directors and chief (@) EERBRETHAEZEIR
executive (Continued) = (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F12A31H ILFE
Salaries Retirement
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
ek RIS
Name of Director e ikn Hib g WBIEAa RENGES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (i) RS % £ () - 1,087 1,212 10 2,309
Mr. Yu Yonghua (v) FAELEW) - 394 2,044 9 2,447
Mr. Luo Huagang (v) R LA W) - 359 2,253 6 2,618
Mr. Zhong Lin (i) BT A(i) - 253 1,212 6 1,471
Ms. Yuan Ligun LT - - - - -
Mr. Li Feide FREEEAE - - - - -
Mr. Li Xianlu (vii 5T B 5 A (vil - 252 - 5 257
Mr. Jiang Deging (vii) Z= B 5 i) - - - - -
Mr. Li Yang (vl 15 5 4 i) - 216 530 4 750
Mr. Lu Xiaoji (ix) =B - - - - -
Independent non-executive B FHTES
Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong EYDEE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung WHESE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Cao Zhoutao ENERL 180 - - - 180
540 2,561 7,251 40 10,392
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37 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Continued)

(a) Benefits and interests of directors and chief

executive (Continued)

(vi)
(vil)
(viil

()

Note:

(b)

Mr. Xiang Weimin and Ms. Pan Xinling were appointed on 9 July 2015.

Mr. Zhong Lin was appointed on 21 October 2014.

Mr. Li Li was appointed on 23 November 2015.

Mr. Zhou Xiangyang resigned on 9 July 2015.

Mr. Yu Yonghua was appointed on 15 January 2014 and resigned on 9
July 2015.

Mr. Luo Huagang was appointed on 3 June 2014 and resigned on 10
November 2015.

Mr. Li Xianlu was appointed on 3 June 2014 and resigned on 21 October
2014,

Mr. Jiang Deqing and Mr. Li Yang resigned on 3 June 2014.

Mr. Lu Xiaoji resigned on 15 January 2014.

These represent the fair value of share options granted to the Directors
under Midea Share Option Incentive Plan. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 2.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Disclosure
of Interests” in the Report of the Directors.

Directors’ termination benefits

The subsidiaries of the Company paid HK$424,000 to Mr.
Zhou Xiangyang as compensation for the termination of the

appointment.

] 86 Welling Holding Limited « BEZERERAE

37

EEEMNRER (F)

(a) EERBSITHRARZENR
Em (&)

(b)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

(iX)

Bk

)15 R 5t A ROE HT3, 2 201597 A9H
BEE-

M ER2014F10A21 B EZ (£
F N HER2015F 11 H23HEZ (T -
ARG % £ R20154%7 A9R BT -

ROKEFER2014F1 15 EZERR
201547 F9H BHT »

BERLENR2014F6 A EZ A LR
201511 H10H BT~

FHEBEEENR2014F6 A EZ A LR
201410 A21 H BT »

EEBEERFTHREN2014F6 30 B
fFeo

B4 £ 20141 B15H BT -

IR RBRIBROBRE BB NESR
H BB AR EE ZEBREOAR
BEDREMEMEANEETLARND AE
N HRZHRA 2 G BURRTE -

ZERYEN S RERELEEEL
GREREE DERBEXREEE®RE [#

x
%

ESZEBBER

RN B A EE | EEBSE TS
#424,0007T1E A BEER F (2 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

37 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Continued) 37 EEEFREZ (&)

(c) Employees’ emoluments (c) EEFHM
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the TEERAESTMATRIENS (2014
Group, four (2014: three) are directors whose emoluments are F=R)EF AR EXHER T
disclosed above. The aggregate of the emolument in respect of —% (20145 - MB) ALz e BzEw
the remaining individual (2014: two) are as follows: N
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAET 295 780
Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 1,386 3,410
Retirement scheme contributions RIKEFTEIHER 6 21
Termination benefit BrEE A2 A 171 -
Contribution by owners related to BB ARG AERZ AR
share-based payment 328 -
2,186 4,211
The emolument of the remaining individual (2014: two) with the BT—5 C04F MB)ZeH AL
highest emoluments are within the following bands: S BT AR :

Number of individuals

AH
2015 2014
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 78 %1,000,0007T — 7% #2,000,0007T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 7 #2,000,0017T — 7% #3,000,0007C 1 1
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LEMBREE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT BT
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
BER TEY BEZ KRG "BEZ
Results ES
Revenue /9N 8,040,366 9,273,399 8,881,723 7,787,502 10,490,373
Profit attributable to the owners VN/NGIE YN
of the Company FE{EFE 525,030 678,372 785,499 640,256 607,563
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE 7,594,486 8,046,711 7,891,778 6,339,053 6,162,452
Total liabilities BaE (3,192,685)  (3,716,867)  (4,016,802) (3,735,799 (3,610,278)
Total equity EmBE 4,401,801 4,329,844 3,874,976 3,103,254 2,552,174
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